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          1                              Thursday Morning Session, 
 
          2                              September 11, 2014. 
 
          3                           - - - 
 
          4               MR. PRITCHARD:  Matt Pritchard, on behalf 
 
          5   of IEU-Ohio, I'm with the law firm of McNees, Wallace 
 
          6   & Nurick, 21 East State Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215. 
 
          7               MR. BERGER:  Good morning.  I'm Edmund 
 
          8   "Tad" Berger from the Office of Ohio Consumers' 
 
          9   Counsel, 10 West Broad Street, Suite 1800, Columbus, 
 
         10   Ohio 43215.  With me is Greg Slone also from our 
 
         11   office.  Thank you. 
 
         12               MR. OLIKER:  Joseph Oliker on behalf of 
 
         13   IGS Energy, 6100 Emerald Parkway, Dublin, Ohio 43016. 
 
         14               MS. BOJKO:  Kim Bojko, Carpenter, Lipps & 
 
         15   Leland, 280 North High Street, Suite 1300, on behalf 
 
         16   of Ohio Manufacturers' Association. 
 
         17               MS. HUSSEY:  Rebecca Hussey with the law 
 
         18   firm of Carpenter, Lipps & Leland, 280 North High 
 
         19   Street, Suite 1300, Columbus, Ohio 43215 on behalf of 
 
         20   The Kroger Company. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  Amy Spiller for Duke Energy 
 
         22   Ohio, 139 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202. 
 
         23               And then who is on the phone, please. 
 
         24               MR. SETTINERI:  This is Mike Settineri 
 
         25   with the law firm Vorys, Sater, Seymour & Pease, 52 
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          1   East Gay Street, Columbus, Ohio, Settineri is S as in 
 
          2   Sam E-T-T-I-N-E-R-I, on behalf of the Retail Energy 
 
          3   Supply Association. 
 
          4               MS. MOONEY:  This is Colleen Mooney on 
 
          5   behalf of Ohio Partners for Affordable Energy. 
 
          6               MS. COHN:  This is Jody Kyler-Cohn with 
 
          7   the law firm of Boehm, Kurtz & Lowery, 36 East 
 
          8   Seventh Street, Suite 1510, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202, 
 
          9   on behalf of the Ohio Energy Group. 
 
         10               MR. HART:  Douglas E. Hart, 441 Vine 
 
         11   Street, Suite 4192, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202, for the 
 
         12   Greater Cincinnati Health Council. 
 
         13               MR. CASTO:  Scott Casto and Jacob 
 
         14   McDermott on behalf of the FirstEnergy Solutions, 76 
 
         15   South Main Street, Akron, Ohio 44308. 
 
         16               MR. BEELER:  Steve Beeler, Thomas 
 
         17   Lindgren, and Ryan O'Rourke on behalf of staff of the 
 
         18   Public Utilities Commission, 180 East Broad Street, 
 
         19   Columbus, Ohio 43215. 
 
         20               MS. KINGERY:  Jeanne Kingery also on 
 
         21   behalf of Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  And are there nonattorneys 
 
         23   on the phone as well, please? 
 
         24               MR. CHOUEIKI:  Hisham Choueiki with 
 
         25   staff. 
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          1               MS. TURKENTON:  And Tammy Turkenton with 
 
          2   staff. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  Okay.  And we are -- we are 
 
          4   here for the deposition of Chuck Whitlock.  And I 
 
          5   guess just a procedural issue.  We have had some 
 
          6   activity as folks are aware with respect to 
 
          7   confidentiality agreements.  As I interpret the 
 
          8   Commission's most recent decision, we are to provide 
 
          9   those who have requested confidential information 
 
         10   confidential information even if they have yet to 
 
         11   enter into a confidentiality agreement. 
 
         12               Consistent with that directive we have 
 
         13   provided those parties requesting the material 
 
         14   confidential information.  We've also entered into 
 
         15   confidentiality agreements.  I fully anticipate there 
 
         16   will be confidential topics addressed during 
 
         17   Mr. Whitlock's deposition.  For those entities that 
 
         18   have not requested confidential information we're 
 
         19   going to have to just bifurcate the deposition into 
 
         20   two different -- two different parts.  At this point 
 
         21   there are parties who have not expressed interest in 
 
         22   confidential information, but I don't believe any of 
 
         23   them to be on the phone this morning.  But we'll just 
 
         24   have to confirm, I guess, Tad, when you want to delve 
 
         25   into confidential material. 
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          1               MR. BERGER:  Sure, Amy.  I appreciate 
 
          2   that and we will do our best to try and separate the 
 
          3   confidential from the nonconfidential comments with 
 
          4   the nonconfidential portion of the deposition.  If we 
 
          5   should branch into a confidential area, I would ask 
 
          6   counsel to advise or the witness if he knows that the 
 
          7   information is confidential that he would need to 
 
          8   respond with, that he advise us accordingly.  We will 
 
          9   then postpone that until the confidential portion of 
 
         10   the deposition.  Is that satisfactory? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  I think that's great.  For 
 
         12   those on the phone Maureen Grady from the OCC just 
 
         13   joined. 
 
         14               And just one final housekeeping matter, 
 
         15   if you could put your phones on mute in the event 
 
         16   people may engage in some other activities, we don't 
 
         17   get a lot of that background disruption here in the 
 
         18   conference room. 
 
         19               MR. BERGER:  Karen, do you want to swear 
 
         20   the witness, please. 
 
         21                           - - - 
 
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
 
         25 
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          1                    CHARLES R. WHITLOCK 
 
          2   being by me first duly sworn, as hereinafter 
 
          3   certified, deposes and says as follows: 
 
          4                     CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          5   By Mr. Berger: 
 
          6          Q.   Good morning, Mr. Whitlock.  My name is 
 
          7   Tad Berger.  I am with the Office of Ohio Consumers' 
 
          8   Counsel.  As you know, we sent out a deposition -- 
 
          9   notice of deposition.  Are you familiar with that 
 
         10   notice of deposition? 
 
         11          A.   No. 
 
         12          Q.   Did you review the notice of deposition? 
 
         13          A.   I did not. 
 
         14          Q.   I have a copy here for you. 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  Are you going to mark it? 
 
         16               MR. BERGER:  Yes.  Let's mark that as 
 
         17   Whitlock Deposition Exhibit 1.  If counsel doesn't 
 
         18   have a copy, I have some extra copies too.  Just let 
 
         19   me know. 
 
         20               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
         21          Q.   Mr. Whitlock, just for your reference, 
 
         22   if -- we obviously noticed two specific individuals 
 
         23   if you read this notice of deposition for this -- for 
 
         24   depositions.  There's also No. 3.  Did you have a 
 
         25   chance to review No. 3 on the notice of deposition? 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  I am just going to note an 
 
          2   objection to your part 3B which has absolutely 
 
          3   nothing to do with the issues in this case. 
 
          4               MR. BERGER:  Noted. 
 
          5               MR. OLIKER:  For the record could we 
 
          6   identify what 3B is. 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  It's "Requests for consent 
 
          8   of a sale or transfer of a Sponsoring Company's 
 
          9   interest in OVEC." 
 
         10               MR. OLIKER:  Thank you. 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  I would further note that 
 
         12   same objection, Mr. Berger, to 3A which asks about 
 
         13   the terms of the ICPA in respect of sale or transfer 
 
         14   of a Sponsoring Company's OVEC interest, issues 
 
         15   wholly unrelated to this case and, thus, irrelevant. 
 
         16          Q.   Okay.  Let me know when you are done 
 
         17   reviewing the notice of deposition. 
 
         18          A.   Okay. 
 
         19          Q.   And with respect to No. 3 on the notice 
 
         20   of deposition, can you tell me with respect to parts 
 
         21   A, B, C, and D whether you would be the most 
 
         22   qualified person at Duke Energy to be able to answer 
 
         23   questions related to those parts noting that 
 
         24   Ms. Spiller has stated an objection with respect 
 
         25   to -- to the subject matter of sections A and B? 
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          1          A.   What do you mean by most qualified? 
 
          2          Q.   Well, are you qualified to answer 
 
          3   questions regarding these subject matters? 
 
          4          A.   Well, I think that will be determined by 
 
          5   how well I answer the questions, right?  I think I 
 
          6   can answer some of the questions but we'll see. 
 
          7          Q.   Is there another person who would be more 
 
          8   qualified than you to answer the questions to the 
 
          9   best of your knowledge who is a Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         10   employee or somebody who would represent Duke Energy 
 
         11   Ohio in a capacity related to this proceeding? 
 
         12          A.   There might be under C and D, potentially 
 
         13   under B and maybe under A also. 
 
         14          Q.   And who would those persons be? 
 
         15          A.   Well, the ICPA is a legal document.  I am 
 
         16   not a lawyer so maybe a lawyer under A, same thing 
 
         17   under B.  Again, a lot of those things are dealt with 
 
         18   under the ICPA. 
 
         19          Q.   You signed the ICPA, didn't you? 
 
         20          A.   I did. 
 
         21          Q.   Okay.  And C and D, were there particular 
 
         22   individuals who you feel are more qualified? 
 
         23          A.   So in C I have a question about what you 
 
         24   mean by the value of its share of capacity and energy 
 
         25   from OVEC to its retail customers.  I'm not familiar 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                14 
          1   with who the retail customers of OVEC are. 
 
          2          Q.   Would you be -- if it said "wholesale 
 
          3   customers," would that change your understanding of 
 
          4   this question?  All OVEC customers are wholesale 
 
          5   customers; is that correct? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          7   extent you are revising this notice of deposition to 
 
          8   an issue that's way far afield of the subject matter 
 
          9   of this -- of this case. 
 
         10          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         11          A.   Could you repeat the question? 
 
         12          Q.   Yes.  If the word "retail" was replaced 
 
         13   with "wholesale" -- with "wholesale," would you be 
 
         14   comfortable that you are qualified to testify with 
 
         15   respect to questions pertaining to this notice of 
 
         16   deposition part 3C? 
 
         17          A.   Again, I mean, so the wholesale customers 
 
         18   of OVEC would be who? 
 
         19          Q.   Would be all of the jurisdictional 
 
         20   customers who receive power from -- from OVEC. 
 
         21          A.   So if that's dispatched into PJM, would 
 
         22   it be all of PJM's customers? 
 
         23          Q.   Yes.  I think that's the understanding I 
 
         24   would have. 
 
         25          A.   Okay. 
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          1          Q.   Is that the understanding you would have? 
 
          2          A.   I'm not sure.  I'm trying to divine what 
 
          3   you're asking me, what question you are asking me. 
 
          4          Q.   Well, who would you define as OVEC's 
 
          5   customers? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Wholesale customers? 
 
          7               MR. BERGER:  I am asking who he would 
 
          8   define. 
 
          9          Q.   Are they wholesale or retail customers? 
 
         10   Does OVEC have wholesale or retail customers or both? 
 
         11          A.   I think OVEC has both. 
 
         12          Q.   Okay.  And who would be the wholesale 
 
         13   customers and who would be the retail customers? 
 
         14          A.   So I think the wholesale customers would 
 
         15   be the owners in some circumstances and then PJM in 
 
         16   other circumstances. 
 
         17          Q.   And who would be the retail customers? 
 
         18          A.   I think that certain -- certain owner 
 
         19   members of OVEC have retail customers, but I'm not 
 
         20   sure how those deals are structured. 
 
         21          Q.   But those customers would not be retail 
 
         22   customers of OVEC.  They would be retail customers of 
 
         23   the sponsoring companies who are the owners of OVEC; 
 
         24   isn't that right? 
 
         25          A.   Right.  So I don't -- I guess I would go 
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          1   back to I'm not familiar with how the owner of OVEC 
 
          2   transfers those interests to their retail customers. 
 
          3          Q.   Is there somebody who is more qualified 
 
          4   to testify on this subject matter that you are 
 
          5   familiar with? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          7   form of the question to the extent OVEC has many 
 
          8   sponsoring companies, and you are asking us about how 
 
          9   individual sponsoring companies may treat their 
 
         10   retail rates. 
 
         11          Q.   Again, I'll just ask my question, are you 
 
         12   aware of somebody that is at Duke Energy Ohio that is 
 
         13   more familiar with this subject matter and could 
 
         14   testify more capably regarding this subject matter? 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  Again, object to the form. 
 
         16   If you can answer. 
 
         17          A.   I'm not sure I can answer.  So we went 
 
         18   down a couple of different tracks, and so are you 
 
         19   asking me is there somebody at DE Ohio who can opine 
 
         20   on the retail -- the wholesale or retail nature of 
 
         21   each of the individual owners of OVEC? 
 
         22          Q.   That could opine regarding the economic 
 
         23   value of its capacity and energy is really what this 
 
         24   question goes to in the marketplace. 
 
         25          A.   Again, I'm struggling with the idea of 
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          1   the value to retail customers.  I'm not trying to be 
 
          2   difficult.  I am trying to understand what the 
 
          3   question is. 
 
          4          Q.   I am just talking about the value of 
 
          5   energy and capacity in the marketplace, whether you 
 
          6   define it as wholesale or retail. 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  Again, objection to the 
 
          8   form. 
 
          9          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  If you can. 
 
         11          Q.   If you can, yes.  Are you the most 
 
         12   capable person, or is there somebody who is more 
 
         13   qualified to testify on behalf of Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         14   regarding the economic value of the OVEC income and 
 
         15   capacity in the current marketplace? 
 
         16          A.   Again, I think I can comment on it.  I 
 
         17   don't know if I am the most qualified. 
 
         18          Q.   Is there somebody who you think is more 
 
         19   qualified to testify on behalf of Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         21   form of this most qualified designation. 
 
         22          A.   I don't know. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  The notice didn't indicate 
 
         24   as such. 
 
         25               MS. BOJKO:  I'm sorry, I didn't hear the 
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          1   response. 
 
          2               THE WITNESS:  I said I don't know if 
 
          3   there is somebody more qualified or not. 
 
          4          Q.   Thank you.  And with respect to part D, 
 
          5   do you know if you are -- do you know if you are -- 
 
          6   do you consider yourself qualified to testify on that 
 
          7   subject matter? 
 
          8          A.   So I haven't made any estimates of the 
 
          9   benefit to customers and projected rate impacts. 
 
         10          Q.   Has Duke Energy Ohio made those 
 
         11   estimates -- 
 
         12          A.   I'm not sure. 
 
         13          Q.   Are you familiar with those estimates? 
 
         14          A.   I'm not sure if they have or not, and I 
 
         15   am not familiar with them if they were -- they did do 
 
         16   them. 
 
         17          Q.   Did you do any assessment to determine 
 
         18   for parts A through D whether you -- whether there is 
 
         19   a more qualified person to testify with knowledge and 
 
         20   expertise regarding the subject matter in section 3 
 
         21   regarding these areas of testimony? 
 
         22          A.   Again -- 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  I am just going to object 
 
         24   for a moment, Mr. Berger.  With respect to this 
 
         25   notice of deposition, after it was received by us, we 
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          1   were informed by your co-counsel that they were 
 
          2   interested in pursuing the depositions of 
 
          3   Mr. Whitlock and Mr. Wathen and not beyond that.  So 
 
          4   to the suggestion that Mr. Whitlock needs to be here 
 
          5   to respond to 3A through D, I just want to clarify 
 
          6   that we responded in good faith to the request of 
 
          7   your co-counsel. 
 
          8          Q.   Were you consulted, Mr. Whitlock, 
 
          9   regarding the scope of this deposition and whether it 
 
         10   covered these subject matters prior to your 
 
         11   appearance today? 
 
         12          A.   Again, when I read this, right, I read 
 
         13   this -- I was to come, Don Wathen was to come, and 
 
         14   then people with knowledge and/or expertise in 3A 
 
         15   through D should show up.  And it might be me.  It 
 
         16   might not be me.  So I'll tell you the same thing I 
 
         17   told you related to A, that I'm familiar with the 
 
         18   ICPA but there might be somebody that's most 
 
         19   qualified to answer the questions because it's a 
 
         20   legal document, same thing under B.  C, we went 
 
         21   around the mulberry bush on C and D.  I have not done 
 
         22   any estimates.  I don't have any in my possession, 
 
         23   control.  I don't have anything relative to D. 
 
         24          Q.   And with respect to D, did you make any 
 
         25   inquiry whether Duke Energy Ohio had conducted any -- 
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          1   or performed any such estimates? 
 
          2          A.   I did not. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object. 
 
          4               THE WITNESS:  Sorry. 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  You're all right. 
 
          6               We were asked to produce Mr. Whitlock. 
 
          7   We were not asked to address other elements of this 
 
          8   notice based upon communications with your 
 
          9   co-counsel.  We would like the record to be very 
 
         10   clear in that regard because there's suggestion that 
 
         11   perhaps we're not responding in good faith to the 
 
         12   notice. 
 
         13               MR. BERGER:  I appreciate your statement, 
 
         14   Amy.  I did not have that conversation with you. 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  Understood. 
 
         16               MR. BERGER:  Co-counsel is here and she 
 
         17   can clarify that. 
 
         18               Do we have anything further to say on 
 
         19   that, Maureen? 
 
         20               MS. GRADY:  I don't think we need to get 
 
         21   into that on the record here.  I think we should 
 
         22   proceed. 
 
         23               MR. BERGER:  Thank you. 
 
         24          Q.   (By Mr. Berger) Mr. Whitlock, would you 
 
         25   please state your name and business address for the 
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          1   record. 
 
          2          A.   My name is Charles R. Whitlock.  My 
 
          3   address is 319 East Fourth Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 
 
          4   45202. 
 
          5          Q.   And what is your current position? 
 
          6          A.   So I have two positions.  I'm the 
 
          7   president of Midwest Commercial Generation.  I'm also 
 
          8   the vice president of Gas Operations. 
 
          9          Q.   And these are positions within Duke 
 
         10   Energy Corporation, not Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         11   specifically; is that correct? 
 
         12          A.   Correct. 
 
         13          Q.   And you are here testifying today on 
 
         14   behalf of Duke Energy Ohio though; is that correct? 
 
         15          A.   I'm not sure. 
 
         16          Q.   Okay. 
 
         17               MS. SPILLER:  We're here in a response to 
 
         18   a notice of deposition that we are responding to. 
 
         19          Q.   I understand.  You participate in 
 
         20   proceedings on behalf of the subsidiary companies? 
 
         21          A.   I have in the past. 
 
         22          Q.   Okay.  And how long have you worked for 
 
         23   Duke Energy Corporation? 
 
         24          A.   Since June of 2000. 
 
         25          Q.   And can you tell me progressively what 
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          1   your positions have been within Duke Energy 
 
          2   Corporation since that period of time? 
 
          3          A.   So they end with the jobs I just told you 
 
          4   about, and they started where I was on the trading 
 
          5   desk in various capacities.  So I started in 
 
          6   supervising basically the hourly trading.  Then I 
 
          7   managed the short-term trading business.  Then I 
 
          8   managed the entirety of the power trading business. 
 
          9   I got responsibility in 2004 for a function they 
 
         10   called portfolio optimization which was essentially 
 
         11   the risk management for the generation so coal 
 
         12   procurement, monetizing -- managing the emission 
 
         13   allowance position, monetizing power into either 
 
         14   bilateral or wholesale markets. 
 
         15               And then in 2009, I got responsibility 
 
         16   for the operations of the power plants.  I also 
 
         17   had -- I have responsibility for our competitive 
 
         18   retail business.  And then in the spring of 2014, I 
 
         19   got responsibility for the gas operations business. 
 
         20          Q.   And have you always worked for Duke 
 
         21   Energy Corporation as opposed to any of its operating 
 
         22   subsidiaries? 
 
         23          A.   So I -- I'm not sure that I'm actually -- 
 
         24   I might have misspoke.  I'm not sure I'm actually an 
 
         25   employee of Duke Energy Ohio.  I think I am employed 
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          1   by Duke Energy Business Services which is the last 
 
          2   time -- last time I was deposed I got into this loop 
 
          3   about who I actually worked for. 
 
          4          Q.   Okay.  Have you always worked for Duke 
 
          5   Energy Business Services or has that changed from 
 
          6   time to time? 
 
          7          A.   It's changed.  It was Cinergy Services 
 
          8   for a while.  I think it was Duke Energy Services and 
 
          9   so that pay rail -- that payroll company, if you 
 
         10   will, changes from time to time. 
 
         11          Q.   Now, are you familiar with Duke 
 
         12   Energy's position in this case regarding whether the 
 
         13   Duke Energy Ohio interest in OVEC is required to be 
 
         14   transferred or not to a competitive operating 
 
         15   affiliate? 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         17   relevance of the question. 
 
         18          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         19          A.   Could you restate the question? 
 
         20          Q.   Are you familiar with Duke 
 
         21   Energy's position in this proceeding regarding 
 
         22   whether the Duke Energy Ohio interest in the OVEC 
 
         23   assets -- in the OVEC entitlement and assets and 
 
         24   liability is required to be transferred to an 
 
         25   affiliate, competitive generation affiliate, or not? 
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          1          A.   I'm not familiar with it. 
 
          2          Q.   Have you reviewed the discovery in this 
 
          3   proceeding regarding OVEC? 
 
          4          A.   No. 
 
          5          Q.   Do you know whether Duke has taken a 
 
          6   position regarding that issue? 
 
          7          A.   I do not. 
 
          8          Q.   Are you familiar with the stipulation in 
 
          9   Duke's rate case at Case No. 11-3549-EL-SSO? 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         11   form.  And also if you could help in terms of some 
 
         12   indication other than a case number, it might be 
 
         13   helpful for the witness. 
 
         14          A.   I would agree with my counsel.  I don't 
 
         15   think about -- I don't think about them by case 
 
         16   number. 
 
         17          Q.   Okay.  Why don't I show you a copy of the 
 
         18   stipulation. 
 
         19          A.   Okay. 
 
         20          Q.   That's probably the best way to 
 
         21   familiarize yourself with the case.  Actually this is 
 
         22   the -- did I say rate case?  This is an electric 
 
         23   security plan proceeding.  Docket -- what I am 
 
         24   showing you is just a couple of pages -- well, I 
 
         25   think I have a whole copy of the stipulation. 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  I think that may be 
 
          2   helpful. 
 
          3               MR. BERGER:  Yes.  Can we mark this as -- 
 
          4   as Whitlock Deposition Exhibit 2, Karen.  This is the 
 
          5   copy of the stipulation without the attachments to 
 
          6   that stipulation. 
 
          7               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
          8          Q.   I am just asking, Mr. Whitlock, whether 
 
          9   you are generally familiar with this stipulation.  I 
 
         10   am not expecting you to read the whole stipulation. 
 
         11          A.   Okay.  I wasn't reading the whole thing. 
 
         12   I was just trying to make sure I was familiar with 
 
         13   it.  I am. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  And I am going to be focusing in 
 
         15   particular on pages 25 through 28 of the stipulation. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  I am just going to object 
 
         17   to the relevance to any line of questioning regarding 
 
         18   this prior stipulation. 
 
         19               I'm sorry, Tad, the paragraphs were what? 
 
         20               MR. BERGER:  25 to 28, Amy, Section 8.  I 
 
         21   have copies of just that section here for people who 
 
         22   want to see that section. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
         24          Q.   I just wanted you to look over those 
 
         25   pages and see if you are familiar with those 
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          1   provisions. 
 
          2          A.   Do you want me to read it all? 
 
          3          Q.   I just am asking you if you are familiar 
 
          4   with those provisions of the stipulation. 
 
          5          A.   I would answer the same way I answered 
 
          6   the previous question. 
 
          7          Q.   Were you involved, Mr. Whitlock, in the 
 
          8   review of the draft stipulation in that case? 
 
          9          A.   I believe so. 
 
         10          Q.   Were you involved in the decision making 
 
         11   regarding the stipulation in that case on behalf of 
 
         12   Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
         13          A.   I believe so. 
 
         14          Q.   And are you familiar with the -- turning 
 
         15   you to page -- page 26, where it says under paragraph 
 
         16   B toward the bottom and the sentence starts 
 
         17   "Following the transfers of the generation assets," 
 
         18   do you see that? 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   And then there is a proviso starting 
 
         21   about five lines from the bottom where it says 
 
         22   "Provided, however, that contractual obligations," do 
 
         23   you see that? 
 
         24          A.   Yes. 
 
         25          Q.   Would you please read that to the end of 
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          1   that sentence, that proviso. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object.  This 
 
          3   is irrelevant to the scope of the ESP that's pending 
 
          4   before the Commission.  I further think reading 
 
          5   pieces and parts of this entire stipulation without 
 
          6   the necessary definitions of terms used in this 
 
          7   particular paragraph results in an incorrect 
 
          8   interpretation of what was stated here. 
 
          9               MR. OLIKER:  Amy, would you consent to a 
 
         10   continuing objection on all questions on this topic 
 
         11   so we can move along faster? 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  Well, I am not the one that 
 
         13   is asking questions that are irrelevant, but to the 
 
         14   extent I need to lodge an objection, I will do so.  I 
 
         15   have objected notely -- I have objected fundamentally 
 
         16   to this topic but there are particular questions that 
 
         17   demand further objection. 
 
         18               MR. BERGER:  We have no problem with you 
 
         19   having a continuing objection regarding the relevance 
 
         20   of the questions at issue concerning whether Duke 
 
         21   Energy Ohio's required or not to transfer its assets 
 
         22   to an affiliate. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Well, there are further 
 
         24   objections. 
 
         25               MR. BERGER:  If you want to keep 
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          1   repeating those objections, that's fine. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  Okay. 
 
          3               MR. BERGER:  However, you know, obviously 
 
          4   it's unnecessary given that you've lodged that 
 
          5   objection. 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Well, I think there are 
 
          7   additional objections beyond relevance.  And I just 
 
          8   note it.  So to the extent those are required to be 
 
          9   asserted, I am going to do that. 
 
         10               MR. BERGER:  So beyond relevance your 
 
         11   current objection is what? 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  Well, you're -- you're 
 
         13   misconstruing the nature by asking the witness to 
 
         14   read only parts of this particular provision.  You've 
 
         15   also referenced an aspect of this stipulation that 
 
         16   includes terms previously defined.  But the focus of 
 
         17   your inquiry doesn't bother to include those pages in 
 
         18   which the definition occurs, again, misconstruing the 
 
         19   very nature and scope of the stipulation. 
 
         20               MR. BERGER:  I object to your 
 
         21   characterization of misconstruction.  The settlement 
 
         22   will provide what it is.  I am asking him to read a 
 
         23   particular scope -- a particular portion.  Your 
 
         24   objection is noted. 
 
         25          Q.   Would you read that portion of the 
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          1   deposition starting with "provided, however." 
 
          2          A.   I lost it.  Where is it? 
 
          3          Q.   Toward the bottom of page 26. 
 
          4          A.   Just starting with "provided, however"? 
 
          5          Q.   Yes. 
 
          6               MR. OLIKER:  Tad, you are referring to 
 
          7   the document, not the deposition? 
 
          8               MR. BERGMANN:  I'm sorry.  Did I say 
 
          9   deposition?  Yes, to the stipulation. 
 
         10          A.   Page 26. 
 
         11          Q.   Yes. 
 
         12          A.   B starting in the middle of 3, I guess, 
 
         13   "provided, however, the contractual obligations 
 
         14   arising before the signing of the Stipulation shall 
 
         15   be permitted to remain with Duke Energy Ohio without 
 
         16   Commission approval for the remaining period of the 
 
         17   contract but only to the extent that assuming or 
 
         18   transferring such obligations is prohibited by the 
 
         19   terms of the contract or would result in 
 
         20   substantially increased liabilities for Duke Energy 
 
         21   Ohio."  Do you want me to keep reading? 
 
         22          Q.   To the end of the sentence, yes. 
 
         23          A.   "If Duke -- liabilities for Duke Energy 
 
         24   Ohio if Duke Energy Ohio were to transfer such 
 
         25   obligations to its subsidiary or affiliate." 
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          1          Q.   Now, with respect to that sentence, are 
 
          2   you aware of -- that there are provisions in the OVEC 
 
          3   ICPA that allow Duke Energy Ohio to transfer its 
 
          4   interest in OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
          6          A.   There are provisions in the ICPA that 
 
          7   allow a transfer. 
 
          8          Q.   And can you tell me what those provisions 
 
          9   are? 
 
         10          A.   It would be helpful to have the ICPA. 
 
         11          Q.   Sure. 
 
         12               MR. BERGER:  I have a copy of the 
 
         13   executed copy filed with FERC of the ICPA. 
 
         14          A.   I am not sure if -- I am not sure of the 
 
         15   confidentiality provisions of the ICPA.  I probably 
 
         16   doubt it, but it might be confidential.  I don't 
 
         17   know. 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  What I have been told by 
 
         19   counsel for OVEC is that I know that document was 
 
         20   filed with the FERC.  I think that is a public 
 
         21   record.  However, I've understood that sort of the 
 
         22   circumstances giving rise to that or communications 
 
         23   concerning that document would all be deemed 
 
         24   confidential in the eyes of OVEC -- 
 
         25               MR. BERGER:  Okay. 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  -- so just to get that out 
 
          2   there. 
 
          3               MR. OLIKER:  Is OVEC on the phone? 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  No. 
 
          5               MR. BERGER:  Can we mark this document as 
 
          6   Whitlock Deposition Exhibit 3. 
 
          7               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
          8          Q.   And you're familiar with this document. 
 
          9   You already signed this document I think you 
 
         10   indicated. 
 
         11          A.   Yes, I did sign it. 
 
         12          Q.   Do you recall the question I asked a few 
 
         13   minutes ago regarding whether that document provides 
 
         14   a right for Duke Energy Ohio to transfer its 
 
         15   interests in OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
         16          A.   I do recall the question. 
 
         17          Q.   And are you familiar with Section 9.18 of 
 
         18   the agreement? 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         20   relevance. 
 
         21               MR. BERGER:  Objection noted. 
 
         22          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         23               MR. BERGER:  Counsel, if anybody needs a 
 
         24   copy of Section 9.18. 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  And, I'm sorry, you gave 
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          1   Mr. Whitlock the entire -- 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  I gave him the entire 
 
          3   agreement. 
 
          4               MR. PRITCHARD:  Would you like the entire 
 
          5   copy? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  I have got one back at the 
 
          7   office.  Thank you though. 
 
          8               MS. BOJKO:  I'm sorry.  Can I interrupt 
 
          9   for a second?  I hate to rehash this, but I am really 
 
         10   starting to not understand your continuing objection 
 
         11   to relevance.  You're objecting to relevance for 
 
         12   anything regarding OVEC? 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  I'm objecting to the 
 
         14   relevance of the questions about the transfer. 
 
         15               MS. BOJKO:  Transfer or the IPA?  I think 
 
         16   I heard an objection to the IPA, and I am just trying 
 
         17   to understand where -- where your line is on your 
 
         18   objection of relevance. 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  The questions relate to a 
 
         20   section of the ICPA that concerns the transfer of 
 
         21   assignment. 
 
         22               MS. BOJKO:  Okay.  So that's the extent 
 
         23   of your objection. 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  To that question, yeah. 
 
         25               MS. BOJKO:  Okay.  Thank you. 
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          1          A.   So I didn't read all of 9.81, but it 
 
          2   looks like it's the provision of the contract that 
 
          3   allows for successors or assignment of the contract. 
 
          4          Q.   Would you agree with me that the transfer 
 
          5   of the OVEC entitlement is not prohibited by the 
 
          6   ICPA? 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance.  I 
 
          8   further think the document speaks for itself. 
 
          9          A.   Is there a specific portion that you 
 
         10   direct my attention to?  Again, it looks like -- 
 
         11   unless you want me to read it all, it looks like you 
 
         12   have the ability to transfer and sign it, right, 
 
         13   without -- it takes unanimous consent. 
 
         14          Q.   It takes unanimous consent under one 
 
         15   provision. 
 
         16          A.   9.81.  Again, I haven't read the whole 
 
         17   thing so if there is a specific provision that you 
 
         18   could point me to, that would be helpful. 
 
         19          Q.   Yeah.  Are you aware under certain 
 
         20   provision -- under 9.181 unanimous consent is 
 
         21   required of the other sponsoring companies? 
 
         22          A.   Correct. 
 
         23          Q.   But that's not required under other 
 
         24   subsections of Section 9.81; is that correct? 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                34 
          1   form of the question. 
 
          2          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  If you can. 
 
          4          A.   So I read 9.181 so it looks like it 
 
          5   requires unanimous consent.  And then your question 
 
          6   is do other provisions allow for the transfer to take 
 
          7   place without unanimous consent? 
 
          8          Q.   Yes. 
 
          9          A.   Well, let me read them.  So it looks like 
 
         10   under 9.183 you can transfer not withstanding the 
 
         11   provisions of 181 if you meet those requirements 
 
         12   under A, B, C, D, and E. 
 
         13          Q.   You are looking at 9.183? 
 
         14          A.   Yeah. 
 
         15          Q.   Under 9.182 there is no unanimous consent 
 
         16   either, is there? 
 
         17          A.   So it's a little confusing to me in that 
 
         18   there is an agreement, I am assuming it's the 
 
         19   transfer agreement, that would have to be executed in 
 
         20   a form such -- acceptable to the corporation.  And so 
 
         21   I'm not -- it feels to me like that agreement would 
 
         22   also require the unanimous consent, but I'm not sure. 
 
         23   I don't know that you could bind the corporation 
 
         24   without unanimous consent.  You would probably have 
 
         25   to look at the bylaws of OVEC.  It feels to me like 
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          1   9.182 also would require unanimous consent. 
 
          2          Q.   Have you consulted with counsel about 
 
          3   that question? 
 
          4          A.   I have not. 
 
          5          Q.   Okay.  And -- 
 
          6          A.   Again, I am not a lawyer either so. 
 
          7          Q.   I appreciate that. 
 
          8          A.   I am just reading it. 
 
          9          Q.   Would you also agree with me that the 
 
         10   terms of Section 9.18 permits the sale or transfer to 
 
         11   a third party of a sponsoring company's OVEC 
 
         12   entitlement under certain conditions? 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  I'm sorry, what section 
 
         14   were you referencing? 
 
         15               MR. BERGER:  Section 9.18. 
 
         16          A.   Is there a specific section you could 
 
         17   direct me to? 
 
         18          Q.   A subsection? 
 
         19          A.   Yeah, if you can.  9.181 is three pages. 
 
         20          Q.   9.183 where it says "to a Third Party 
 
         21   without any further action."  I think you just 
 
         22   referenced parts -- subparts A through G of that -- 
 
         23          A.   Yeah. 
 
         24          Q.   -- section. 
 
         25          A.   So which part -- which subpart of 9.183 
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          1   are you talking about? 
 
          2          Q.   If you look at sub -- if you look at 
 
          3   9.183, the introductory paragraph, where it says 
 
          4   "shall be permitted." 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          6   extent we are skipping some words. 
 
          7          Q.   Feel free to read the entire introductory 
 
          8   section. 
 
          9          A.   "Notwithstanding the provisions of 
 
         10   Section 9.181, any Sponsoring Company shall be 
 
         11   permitted to, subject compliance with all of the 
 
         12   requirements of this Section 9.183, assign all or 
 
         13   part of its rights, title and interests in, and 
 
         14   obligations under this Agreement to a Third Party 
 
         15   without any further action by the Corporation or the 
 
         16   other Sponsoring Companies." 
 
         17          Q.   Is it your understanding then that under 
 
         18   this provision with the conditions stated 
 
         19   subsequently that the OVEC entitlement of the 
 
         20   sponsoring company can be transferred to a third 
 
         21   party? 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         23   relevance and also to the extent you are asking this 
 
         24   witness for a legal conclusion. 
 
         25               MR. BERGER:  I am asking for his 
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          1   understanding.  He signed the agreement. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  Same objection.  Go ahead. 
 
          3          A.   Again, when I read it, it says that you 
 
          4   can transfer to a third party as long as you meet the 
 
          5   requirements of this section. 
 
          6          Q.   With respect to -- as a member of the 
 
          7   OVEC Executive Committee, are you aware of any 
 
          8   prohibition or do you have an understanding of any 
 
          9   prohibition to Duke Energy transferring its OVEC 
 
         10   interest to an affiliate or to a third party beyond 
 
         11   what's already stated in the agreement? 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  I'm sorry, Karen.  Can you 
 
         13   read that back. 
 
         14               (Record read.) 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  For purposes of Duke Energy 
 
         16   Ohio? 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  Yes.  I am talking here 
 
         18   about Duke Energy Ohio interests. 
 
         19               THE WITNESS:  So I am going to apologize. 
 
         20   Could you read the question back to me, or you can 
 
         21   restate it.  I don't care. 
 
         22               (Record read.) 
 
         23          A.   I'm not sure I understand the question 
 
         24   exactly.  So it's Duke Energy? 
 
         25          Q.   I'm talking about as a member of the OVEC 
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          1   Executive Committee, are you aware of any 
 
          2   prohibitions other than what's stated in the 
 
          3   agreement with respect to allowing Duke Energy Ohio 
 
          4   to transfer or -- its interests and obligation in 
 
          5   OVEC to an affiliate or third party? 
 
          6          A.   I'm struggling with the part outside of 
 
          7   this agreement because I think that it's contained in 
 
          8   this agreement, right? 
 
          9          Q.   I'm asking for your understanding.  Is 
 
         10   this agreement the scope of what limits the ability 
 
         11   to transfer or sell Duke Energy Ohio's -- 
 
         12          A.   I am not aware of any other -- I am not 
 
         13   aware of any other provisions outside of this that 
 
         14   have been codified by the executive committee -- 
 
         15          Q.   Thank you. 
 
         16          A.   -- or that didn't emanate from this, 
 
         17   right? 
 
         18          Q.   Well, if they emanated from this, what do 
 
         19   you mean by that? 
 
         20          A.   The ICPA is the document that governs 
 
         21   the -- how you can transfer assets.  And so if -- 
 
         22          Q.   When you say emanate, you mean -- 
 
         23          A.   Started with, came from, was born out of, 
 
         24   I don't know what the official definition of emanated 
 
         25   is but that's what I mean. 
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          1          Q.   So when you're saying emanated, you mean 
 
          2   the OVEC Executive Committee may interpret this 
 
          3   agreement in a particular way; is that what you are 
 
          4   saying? 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          6   extent you are asking him about the interpretation of 
 
          7   other entities or individuals. 
 
          8               MR. BERGER:  I am asking what he means by 
 
          9   emanate. 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  I think he just defined for 
 
         11   you how he used the term. 
 
         12               MR. BERGER:  I am asking him -- 
 
         13          A.   I mean, it starts with this agreement. 
 
         14          Q.   I understand that.  So when you say the 
 
         15   OVEC Executive Committee, would you agree with me the 
 
         16   OVEC Executive Committee interprets this agreement 
 
         17   from time to time? 
 
         18          A.   I would say each OVEC member interprets 
 
         19   this agreement often -- 
 
         20          Q.   Okay. 
 
         21          A.   -- right? 
 
         22          Q.   No, that's fair. 
 
         23          A.   The parties to this agreement are going 
 
         24   to have interpretation of this agreement. 
 
         25          Q.   And would it be fair to say when you say 
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          1   emanate, the -- when you said emanate earlier, you 
 
          2   were referring to the interpretations that are 
 
          3   given -- the varying interpretations that may be 
 
          4   given to this agreement by the OVEC Executive 
 
          5   Committee members; is that right? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Objection.  I think that 
 
          7   misstates Mr. Whitlock's answer. 
 
          8          Q.   Or do you mean something else? 
 
          9          A.   Again, I would say each of the members -- 
 
         10   each of the executive committee members, each of the 
 
         11   signatories of this agreement, are going to have 
 
         12   interpretations of what this agreement means and when 
 
         13   they vote as part of a -- the executive committee or 
 
         14   a member of OVEC, those interpretations that come out 
 
         15   of this document are what they are voting about. 
 
         16          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree with me that 
 
         17   there -- that there has been no interpretation of 
 
         18   this agreement that would prohibit Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         19   from transferring its interests and obligations in 
 
         20   OVEC to an affiliate or third party if it meets the 
 
         21   conditions of Section 9.18 and the subparts thereto? 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         23   relevance. 
 
         24          A.   That was -- could you restate -- could 
 
         25   you make the question a little simpler? 
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          1               MR. BERGER:  Would you read back the 
 
          2   question, please, Karen. 
 
          3               (Record read.) 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          5   form, also seeks attorney-client communication. 
 
          6          A.   So that feels like a funny question to 
 
          7   me, again, just listening to the words played back to 
 
          8   me, but it sounds like if it meets the requirement 
 
          9   9.183 -- or if it meets that there was a restriction 
 
         10   and that feels like wouldn't be the case. 
 
         11          Q.   So you're agreeing that there would be 
 
         12   no -- other than 9.18 there is no other -- anything 
 
         13   else that would prohibit the transfer.  That's all I 
 
         14   am asking. 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  Within the context of this 
 
         16   document? 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  I'm asking him speaking of 
 
         18   anything else, is there anything other than 9.18 that 
 
         19   limits the transfer of -- 
 
         20          A.   I think I've answered that question 
 
         21   before.  That was the whole emanate from.  We are 
 
         22   going to be in that loop again.  I think I answered 
 
         23   that question but maybe not. 
 
         24          Q.   If I understand your answer, you are not 
 
         25   aware of anything else that would limit it. 
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          1          A.   That didn't come out of this document. 
 
          2          Q.   Yes.  That's your answer, correct? 
 
          3          A.   It didn't start with this document or 
 
          4   somebody's interpretation of this document. 
 
          5          Q.   And I would turn you back briefly to the 
 
          6   stipulation from the ESP II proceeding and that 
 
          7   language on page 26 at the bottom.  We talked about 
 
          8   whether there was any prohibition regarding -- in the 
 
          9   contract regarding the transfer.  There is another 
 
         10   provision here regarding whether the transfer would 
 
         11   result in substantially increased liabilities for 
 
         12   Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         13               Are you aware of whether there has been 
 
         14   any calculation by Duke Energy Ohio or OVEC committee 
 
         15   members as to whether there would be substantially 
 
         16   increased liabilities for Duke Energy Ohio if Duke 
 
         17   Energy Ohio were to transfer its obligations under 
 
         18   the OVEC contract to a subsidiary or affiliate? 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  I am going object to the 
 
         20   interpretations of the ESP stipulation in Case 
 
         21   11-3549.  I don't think they are accurate. 
 
         22          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         23               THE WITNESS:  Could you restate -- could 
 
         24   you read back the question. 
 
         25               (Record read.) 
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          1          A.   I am not. 
 
          2          Q.   You are not aware of any calculation by 
 
          3   OVEC or Duke Energy Ohio regarding that. 
 
          4          A.   I am not. 
 
          5          Q.   Are you aware of whether Duke Energy Ohio 
 
          6   or Duke Energy Corporation made any assessment of 
 
          7   whether it could meet the limitations provided under 
 
          8   the proviso on page 26 of the stipulation in 
 
          9   determining that it need not transfer its interest in 
 
         10   OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         12   misinterpretation of the stipulation. 
 
         13          Q.   You can answer the question. 
 
         14          A.   So it's hard for me to keep track of the 
 
         15   question when there is an objection, so we will just 
 
         16   have to go back and read it again. 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  Karen, can you reread the 
 
         18   question. 
 
         19               I certainly understand that, 
 
         20   Mr. Whitlock. 
 
         21               (Record read.) 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  Again, same objection. 
 
         23          A.   I don't believe so. 
 
         24          Q.   Are you aware of whether Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         25   or any of its affiliates on Duke Energy Ohio's behalf 
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          1   made any effort to transfer the interests and 
 
          2   obligations of Duke Energy Ohio in OVEC to an 
 
          3   affiliate or third party? 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          5   form, the relevance, failure to include a time 
 
          6   period. 
 
          7          Q.   You can answer the question if you can. 
 
          8          A.   I am. 
 
          9          Q.   And are you saying that Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         10   did make such efforts? 
 
         11          A.   You said Duke Energy Ohio or Duke Energy 
 
         12   Corporation? 
 
         13          Q.   On behalf of Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         14          A.   Yeah.  So I am aware of that. 
 
         15          Q.   And what efforts were made? 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance.  I 
 
         17   would also just again raise the precaution based upon 
 
         18   the instruction from OVEC's counsel about what may or 
 
         19   may not be confidential as dictated by OVEC. 
 
         20          Q.   Do you understand, Mr. Whitlock, that you 
 
         21   are not to provide privileged attorney-client 
 
         22   communications as part of your answer?  You are 
 
         23   supposed -- you can answer it from your knowledge. 
 
         24               MR. OLIKER:  Before you even answer can 
 
         25   we have a clarification whether we are talking about 
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          1   trade secret information or privileged 
 
          2   attorney-client communications? 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  I can only share with you, 
 
          4   Joe, what counsel for OVEC shared with us, and it was 
 
          5   their position that communications as among 
 
          6   sponsoring companies and board members of OVEC was 
 
          7   confidential.  To the extent you want to take that up 
 
          8   with OVEC's counsel, that's fine.  I'm only sharing 
 
          9   with you what we were instructed. 
 
         10               MR. OLIKER:  And the only reason it's 
 
         11   important, Amy, is because we can have confidential 
 
         12   discussions on this deposition, but we cannot talk 
 
         13   about privileged communications, so it may matter. 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  Well, I mean, you are not 
 
         15   going to get privileged communication regardless.  He 
 
         16   just claimed confidential. 
 
         17               MR. OLIKER:  Okay.  I just wanted to. 
 
         18          Q.   So you can answer the question to your 
 
         19   knowledge if you are aware of what efforts -- the 
 
         20   question was what efforts were made to transfer the 
 
         21   OVEC interests. 
 
         22          A.   Again, I am not sure what is confidential 
 
         23   or not, but we had asked -- we had asked -- 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to stop there 
 
         25   because I think it was a "yes" or "no" question that 
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          1   led into more further communication which I think 
 
          2   would per OVEC counsel's instruction qualify as 
 
          3   confidential. 
 
          4               MR. BERGER:  You're saying the efforts 
 
          5   that were made to transfer -- 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  You asked if he was aware. 
 
          7               MR. BERGER:  No, no.  I asked that 
 
          8   question before.  He already said he was aware.  And 
 
          9   the question I asked subsequently is what efforts 
 
         10   were made. 
 
         11          A.   So that's where I am not sure what's 
 
         12   confidential and what's not. 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  Yeah.  That feels to me 
 
         14   like it's falling into the confidential section so. 
 
         15               Karen, can we go off the record? 
 
         16               MR. BERGER:  Let's go off the record. 
 
         17               (Discussion off the record.) 
 
         18               MR. BERGER:  Can we go back on the 
 
         19   record, Karen? 
 
         20          Q.   Are you familiar with the transfer 
 
         21   process that was initiated by AEP when they sought to 
 
         22   transfer their interests? 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object.  OCC 
 
         24   has admitted that AEP, their interest in OVEC and 
 
         25   their efforts to transfer, are irrelevant and have no 
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          1   connection whatsoever to this case. 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  I'm sorry, who said that? 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  You said that. 
 
          4               MR. BERGER:  When did we say that? 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  In answering discovery OCC 
 
          6   has admitted that questions about AEP are not 
 
          7   reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of 
 
          8   admissible evidence here.  So Mr. Whitlock is not 
 
          9   going to go into questions that even questioning 
 
         10   counsel admits are irrelevant. 
 
         11               MR. OLIKER:  He can still answer. 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  No, we're not.  I mean, 
 
         13   this is beyond any way, shape, or form related to our 
 
         14   case. 
 
         15               MR. BERGER:  The transfer process and 
 
         16   whether the transfer should or shouldn't be done is 
 
         17   certainly relevant to this case. 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  AEP's transfer of its 
 
         19   interests has no bearing on this case.  This is now a 
 
         20   fishing expectation in respect of AEP Ohio.  And we 
 
         21   are not going to go there. 
 
         22               MR. BERGER:  I am going to the transfer 
 
         23   process and if he is familiar with the transfer 
 
         24   process that was initiated by AEP. 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  Again, OCC has admitted 
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          1   it's not relevant.  It's not reasonably calculated -- 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  Could you provide the 
 
          3   response you are referring to? 
 
          4               MS. BOJKO:  Obviously there are other 
 
          5   counsel in the room that would disagree with that. 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  How is AEP's transfer 
 
          7   relevant to Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
          8               MR. OLIKER:  Context. 
 
          9               MS. BOJKO:  It's not the question he 
 
         10   asked, but for deposition purposes it's not not 
 
         11   answerable.  That's my point. 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  The same rules apply for 
 
         13   deposition.  It has to be relevant or reasonably 
 
         14   calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible 
 
         15   evidence.  AEP's transfer efforts are neither of 
 
         16   those things. 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  Well, this doesn't even talk 
 
         18   about -- these discovery requests you're talking 
 
         19   about only ask whether AEP is the applicant in this 
 
         20   case.  It doesn't talk anything in any way 
 
         21   specifically about the transfer process and how it 
 
         22   may pertain. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Well, we have them.  We 
 
         24   sent you other requests for admissions.  If I have 
 
         25   gathered the wrong ones, we will get them to you.  We 
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          1   are not going to debate AEP Ohio in this case. 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  So we are off the record? 
 
          3               THE NOTARY:  No. 
 
          4               MR. BERGER:  Oh, we are on the record. 
 
          5   So you are prohibiting Mr. Whitlock from answering 
 
          6   any questions that relate to the transfer process for 
 
          7   the transfer request made by AEP; is that correct? 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  Well, can you help me 
 
          9   understand how you think it's relevant to this case? 
 
         10               MR. BERGER:  Yes.  The transfer process 
 
         11   and whether Duke could adhere to the same transfer 
 
         12   process or did adhere to the same transfer process 
 
         13   and the considerations involved in that transfer 
 
         14   process that AEP utilized when it sought to transfer 
 
         15   its interest as it admitted it tried to is relevant 
 
         16   to determining whether Duke's efforts, if it made 
 
         17   such efforts, were implemented in the same manner and 
 
         18   whether those efforts were appropriate and 
 
         19   comprehensible. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  What does that have to do 
 
         21   with this case? 
 
         22               MR. BERGER:  What does it have to do with 
 
         23   this case? 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  Yes.  What does it have to 
 
         25   do?  I am still struggling to see and you've admit -- 
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          1   I am going to go back.  We have asked you about AEP. 
 
          2   There is no request for AEP Ohio in these proceedings 
 
          3   to transfer.  You objected and then admitted.  We've 
 
          4   indicated that this case is not about AEP Ohio 
 
          5   seeking Commission approval to transfer its interests 
 
          6   in OVEC.  You objected and admitted that to be true. 
 
          7   So I'm struggling with respect to all of these 
 
          8   questions about AEP Ohio, particularly in a case 
 
          9   where there is no obligation by Duke Energy Ohio to 
 
         10   transfer. 
 
         11               MR. BERGER:  Again, as I just explained, 
 
         12   it goes to the process and whether you -- you as Duke 
 
         13   Energy Ohio exercises the same procedures and 
 
         14   protocols that AEP exercised when they sought to 
 
         15   transfer those -- their assets. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  What does that matter? 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  Well, it goes to what the 
 
         18   process is.  We are trying to determine what the 
 
         19   process is and how it should be implemented. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  Again, why does that 
 
         21   matter?  The contract spells out what the process is. 
 
         22               MR. BERGER:  The contract does not 
 
         23   specify how the communications take place.  The 
 
         24   contract does not specify who is to be contacted. 
 
         25   The contract does not specify what unanimous consent 
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          1   means.  There is a lot -- there is a lot of specifics 
 
          2   how the voting process takes place.  We are trying to 
 
          3   determine all of those things and how Duke Energy 
 
          4   implemented them and whether they implemented them in 
 
          5   the same way that AEP did, so we are entitled to find 
 
          6   out how AEP did it. 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  You could have asked AEP 
 
          8   Ohio. 
 
          9               MR. BERGER:  AEP Ohio, we could certainly 
 
         10   ask them, but we can certainly ask Mr. Whitlock.  He 
 
         11   is here.  He is a member of the OVEC committee, 
 
         12   executive committee, and he is certainly capable of 
 
         13   testifying on these issues.  It's relevant.  It's 
 
         14   reasonably calculated to lead to admissible evidence, 
 
         15   and it should be answered.  As I understand it, Amy, 
 
         16   you're saying you are not going to answer it. 
 
         17               MS. SPILLER:  We are not going to answer 
 
         18   about AEP Ohio when, in fact, you have admitted AEP 
 
         19   Ohio and their ownership interest in OVEC isn't part 
 
         20   and parcel of this case.  If you would like to ask 
 
         21   about Duke Energy Ohio and their efforts, that's 
 
         22   fine.  But the fact you asked AEP Ohio presumably in 
 
         23   their ESP proceeding and either didn't know or didn't 
 
         24   answer is not a consequence that Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         25   should have to reconcile today.  So if you would like 
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          1   to ask him about Duke Energy Ohio and the 
 
          2   confidential section, I think that's fine. 
 
          3               MR. BERGER:  I am just trying to 
 
          4   determine you are saying we can't ask those questions 
 
          5   regarding AEP? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  I think it's an abuse of 
 
          7   the discovery process. 
 
          8               MS. BOJKO:  For the record since we are 
 
          9   on the record I would state an objection to that.  I 
 
         10   strongly disagree.  I disagree with your testimony 
 
         11   that Duke has no obligation to transfer.  I think 
 
         12   that's one of the issues that is trying to get 
 
         13   flushed out in this case, so making that underlying 
 
         14   assumption to prevent discovery is problematic in and 
 
         15   of itself.  And we asked AEP these questions, and AEP 
 
         16   did answer questions about other companies without 
 
         17   similar -- or they might have objected, but they 
 
         18   still allowed their witness to answer the questions. 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  Well, again, I am not Steve 
 
         20   Nourse or Matt Satterwhite, and so, you know, we 
 
         21   are -- we're not -- we're not here to talk about AEP 
 
         22   Ohio.  And if you all have a record of what AEP Ohio 
 
         23   did, you can then utilize that for purposes later as 
 
         24   to whether or not that's consistent with what Duke 
 
         25   Energy Ohio did. 
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          1               MS. BOJKO:  I think you're missing the 
 
          2   companies are all part owners of this one facility 
 
          3   OVEC. 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  They are owners of a 
 
          5   corporation. 
 
          6               MS. BOJKO:  Right.  And that owns the 
 
          7   facility and they all have ownership obligations and 
 
          8   liabilities and assets under that -- those agreements 
 
          9   and so we are entitled to explore those and the 
 
         10   interaction of those and the interaction between the 
 
         11   companies when making such decisions with regard to 
 
         12   that entity, particularly when you are seeking cost 
 
         13   recovery for certain aspects of that in this case. 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  But you're not asking about 
 
         15   operation of these facilities by a corporation.  You 
 
         16   are asking whether AEP Ohio tried to transfer its 
 
         17   interests in what it did in that regard. 
 
         18               MR. OLIKER:  We are asking about his 
 
         19   experience. 
 
         20               MS. BOJKO:  We are asking about the 
 
         21   process, and as a member of that board, he can speak 
 
         22   to that process and how it was handled. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  But his experience in 
 
         24   respect to AEP Ohio doesn't matter. 
 
         25               MS. BOJKO:  It matters if he is on the 
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          1   board and his interactions in the decisions made by 
 
          2   the board as to whether a transfer was allowed or not 
 
          3   allowed under the contract of that company, then, 
 
          4   yes, it does.  Maybe it seems -- 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  For AEP Ohio? 
 
          6               MS. BOJKO:  For all the companies.  Maybe 
 
          7   it seems a little out of context because we jumped 
 
          8   out of the confidential portion, but I think if we 
 
          9   could have kept going -- that was my next question, 
 
         10   are we saving all the confidential to the end, but if 
 
         11   Mr. Berger would have been allowed to keep going, my 
 
         12   assumption is he would have asked him what Duke's 
 
         13   efforts were and what Duke did; and then it would 
 
         14   have been a better tie-in to this sort of question 
 
         15   about how it was handled in a similar situation 
 
         16   through the corporation or through the board but 
 
         17   because we weren't allowed to go down -- 
 
         18               MR. BERGER:  I think the tie-in has been 
 
         19   made. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  It's not out of context.  I 
 
         21   understand exactly where he is trying to go, and 
 
         22   based on the OCC admissions that AEP Ohio in this is 
 
         23   not -- the applicant in this case is not asking to 
 
         24   transfer in this case, that you all have already had 
 
         25   the opportunity to discover AEP's efforts, it's so 
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          1   far afield, so if you would like to ask Mr. Whitlock 
 
          2   about Duke Energy Ohio, that's fine. 
 
          3               MR. BERGER:  It is not that far afield. 
 
          4   At this point in time I think we need to move on or 
 
          5   contact the Attorney Examiner which we can hold that 
 
          6   to later in the deposition. 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  That's fine.  That's fine. 
 
          8               MR. BERGER:  Thank you. 
 
          9          Q.   (By Mr. Berger) Mr. Whitlock, was -- did 
 
         10   Duke join AEP at any point in a request for consent 
 
         11   to transfer assets, OVEC assets? 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  Again, objection. 
 
         13          A.   Yes. 
 
         14          Q.   Was that a "yes"?  I'm sorry, did you say 
 
         15   "yes"? 
 
         16          A.   Yeah.  Again, I think that -- again, I am 
 
         17   not sure how -- whether this is confidential or not, 
 
         18   but it feels confidential. 
 
         19          Q.   So we'll come back to it during the 
 
         20   confidential portion of the deposition. 
 
         21               Are you aware that AEP has said that they 
 
         22   were unable to obtain unanimous consent to the 
 
         23   transfer? 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  Again, objection, 
 
         25   relevance. 
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          1               MR. BERGER:  I'm probing his knowledge of 
 
          2   the AEP transfer which he has just said was joined in 
 
          3   by Duke. 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  Again, relevance.  I also 
 
          5   think what AEP has said is public record. 
 
          6               If you know. 
 
          7          A.   So I don't believe they -- I don't 
 
          8   believe they received unanimous consent to transfer. 
 
          9          Q.   Do you know who refused to consent to 
 
         10   that transfer? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Objection.  This is 
 
         12   confidential.  Tad, we've covered this already. 
 
         13               MR. BERGER:  Okay.  You are making it 
 
         14   confidential. 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  It's also completely 
 
         16   irrelevant. 
 
         17          Q.   Who is Bryan Dougherty, B-R-Y-A-N 
 
         18   D-O-U-G-H-E-R-T-Y? 
 
         19          A.   Bryan Dougherty works in finance for 
 
         20   Duke. 
 
         21          Q.   And what is his role with respect to 
 
         22   Duke's interest in OVEC?  Does he have a role?  He 
 
         23   answered certain questions pertaining to OVEC in this 
 
         24   matter. 
 
         25          A.   Yeah.  So he -- he probably -- 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  You don't have to guess. 
 
          2   If they have discovery to show you, that may be 
 
          3   helpful. 
 
          4               THE WITNESS:  Fair. 
 
          5          A.   So what were the questions he answered? 
 
          6          Q.   You haven't reviewed the discovery, 
 
          7   correct? 
 
          8          A.   No. 
 
          9          Q.   He answered OCC Interrogatory 5-105. 
 
         10   Some of these are confidential responses, and I am 
 
         11   not going to show them -- well, I can show them to 
 
         12   you, but I am not going to put them into evidence at 
 
         13   this time.  He answered OEG-DR-1-001.  He answered a 
 
         14   number of other ones.  You haven't reviewed them so 
 
         15   you wouldn't know but, for example, let me give you 
 
         16   OCC-INT-5-105, and you can just get a sense of what 
 
         17   he answered. 
 
         18          A.   Okay. 
 
         19          Q.   He also answered INT-175 part H.  I'll 
 
         20   show you that. 
 
         21          A.   Which part of this?  I'm sorry.  I was 
 
         22   reading this one.  You said -- 
 
         23          Q.   Part H. 
 
         24          A.   Part H, okay. 
 
         25          Q.   You said earlier that Mr. Dougherty was 
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          1   in finance. 
 
          2          A.   Right. 
 
          3          Q.   Can you tell me what his position is? 
 
          4          A.   I don't know his title. 
 
          5          Q.   Do you know which entity he worked for? 
 
          6          A.   I believe he is a shared service 
 
          7   employee, but I'm not sure. 
 
          8          Q.   And just to -- what is a shared service 
 
          9   employee? 
 
         10          A.   So let's just -- let's call it the 
 
         11   payroll company that provides services for both 
 
         12   regulated and unregulated companies, and most 
 
         13   employees inside of Duke Corporation are shared 
 
         14   service employees. 
 
         15          Q.   So they work for different entities -- 
 
         16          A.   Correct. 
 
         17          Q.   -- at different times.  They wear 
 
         18   different hats all the time. 
 
         19          A.   Correct. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Can you hand me back 
 
         21   those responses? 
 
         22               All right.  Do you know what information 
 
         23   that Mr. Dougherty would have regarding OVEC that 
 
         24   you're not familiar with?  He obviously answered some 
 
         25   of these questions -- 
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          1          A.   I am not even sure how to answer that 
 
          2   question.  What he might have that I'm not aware of? 
 
          3          Q.   What knowledge regarding OVEC that he 
 
          4   would have that you would not have.  For some reason 
 
          5   he answered some questions you did not. 
 
          6          A.   I mean, again -- I am not sure -- I am 
 
          7   not sure I know what the question is.  Is there stuff 
 
          8   Bryan knows about OVEC that I don't know about?  Yes. 
 
          9          Q.   Do you know what that is? 
 
         10          A.   I have no clue.  I don't know -- that 
 
         11   feels like a really circular question. 
 
         12          Q.   So you don't know the areas of expertise 
 
         13   regarding OVEC that he would have that you don't 
 
         14   have? 
 
         15          A.   I don't. 
 
         16          Q.   Thank you.  Now, are you familiar with 
 
         17   whether Duke Energy Ohio considered alternatives to 
 
         18   the price stabilization rider for purposes of filing 
 
         19   its electric security plan in this case? 
 
         20          A.   No -- I'm sorry. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  Go ahead.  That's seeking 
 
         22   to elicit attorney-client information. 
 
         23               MR. BERGER:  I am not trying to elicit 
 
         24   any attorney-client communications. 
 
         25          Q.   What you know. 
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          1          A.   So I wasn't involved in any price 
 
          2   stabilization calculations. 
 
          3          Q.   Were you involved in considering any 
 
          4   alternatives to proposing a price stabilization 
 
          5   rider? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Again, same objection.  If 
 
          7   you can answer without divulging confidences. 
 
          8               THE WITNESS:  No. 
 
          9               MS. BOJKO:  I'm sorry, no to the question 
 
         10   or, no, you can't divulge it without breaking 
 
         11   confidence? 
 
         12               THE WITNESS:  No to the latter. 
 
         13               MS. BOJKO:  Okay. 
 
         14          Q.   You can't say whether -- 
 
         15          A.   So I would say any conversations that I 
 
         16   had about that were with my attorney. 
 
         17          Q.   Well, I am not asking whether you had 
 
         18   conversations.  I am asking whether you're aware of 
 
         19   other alternatives that were considered to the 
 
         20   proposal for the PSR.  I am asking your knowledge.  I 
 
         21   am not asking for communications. 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  But if that knowledge is 
 
         23   the product of communication, that's privileged.  The 
 
         24   witness doesn't have to disclose that. 
 
         25               MR. BERGER:  I am not asking him to 
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          1   disclose communications.  I am asking him to disclose 
 
          2   his knowledge. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  I think he's indicated his 
 
          4   communications were with counsel. 
 
          5          Q.   You're saying you have no knowledge 
 
          6   outside of communications with counsel; is that 
 
          7   correct? 
 
          8          A.   That's correct. 
 
          9          Q.   Okay.  Do you know whether OVEC has 
 
         10   performed any analysis impact of recent EPA 
 
         11   regulations that were proposed on June 2 involving 
 
         12   carbon emissions on the cost of generation at OVEC? 
 
         13          A.   I have not seen that.  If they have done 
 
         14   them, I have not seen them. 
 
         15          Q.   And you are not aware of whether they 
 
         16   have done them; is that correct? 
 
         17          A.   I would answer it the same way. 
 
         18          Q.   Are you aware whether Duke Energy Ohio or 
 
         19   any of its affiliates has done such calculations? 
 
         20          A.   I'm not. 
 
         21          Q.   And you're not familiar with the 
 
         22   discovery response that was produced in this case 
 
         23   showing environmental costs associated with OVEC over 
 
         24   a future timeframe, are you? 
 
         25          A.   So I told you before I didn't review the 
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          1   discovery so if there is a specific question and 
 
          2   answer that you would like to point me to, I am 
 
          3   willing to look at it. 
 
          4          Q.   It's confidential so I don't want to ask 
 
          5   you anything specific about it.  I just wanted to 
 
          6   know whether you were aware of the discovery 
 
          7   response. 
 
          8          A.   Again, I didn't review the discovery 
 
          9   responses. 
 
         10          Q.   Okay.  Did you review the discovery 
 
         11   responses that were provided with your name on them? 
 
         12          A.   Probably. 
 
         13          Q.   Okay.  Thank you.  Are you familiar with 
 
         14   a response to OEG-DR-1-001? 
 
         15          A.   No.  Can you show it to me? 
 
         16          Q.   Again, that's a confidential response.  I 
 
         17   just wanted to -- 
 
         18          A.   Certainly not by the designation that you 
 
         19   just referred to it. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  Are you familiar with data 
 
         21   response -- interrogatory responses or document 
 
         22   responses that provided information regarding the net 
 
         23   costs and benefits of operating OVEC to customers 
 
         24   over the term of the P -- of post-term PSR? 
 
         25          A.   Again, I would want to see the 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                63 
          1   interrogatory.  If this is confidential, we should 
 
          2   just do it in the confidential section. 
 
          3          Q.   Right.  I'm just -- some of these 
 
          4   questions -- 
 
          5               MR. BERGER:  Amy, some of the questions 
 
          6   might be relate -- might be confidential.  Some of 
 
          7   them might not be confidential depending on whether 
 
          8   they have confidential information in them. 
 
          9               MS. SPILLER:  Right.  No, I understand. 
 
         10               MR. BERGER:  I am trying to create as 
 
         11   much of a public record as I can rather than going 
 
         12   back and forth.  However, it may be I have to do that 
 
         13   and just -- 
 
         14               MR. OLIKER:  Can we go off the record for 
 
         15   a second? 
 
         16               (Discussion off the record.) 
 
         17               MR. BERGER:  Back on the record. 
 
         18          Q.   I am going to show you a document that's 
 
         19   an attachment to OEG Data Request 1-001 and ask you 
 
         20   if you have seen that before. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  We don't have the question 
 
         22   that went with? 
 
         23               MR. OLIKER:  It's OEG's first question, I 
 
         24   believe. 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  That -- that doesn't help 
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          1   me much but I appreciate it. 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  I probably have it here 
 
          3   somewhere. 
 
          4               MR. OLIKER:  I can show him a copy on my 
 
          5   computer if that helps. 
 
          6          Q.   Here is a copy of the response. 
 
          7          A.   What's the question? 
 
          8          Q.   Are you familiar with that attachment to 
 
          9   DR-1-001? 
 
         10          A.   So the second page I would say yes.  The 
 
         11   first page I can't recall. 
 
         12          Q.   So you're not familiar with the 
 
         13   calculation of the net costs and benefits to 
 
         14   customers of the PSR over the term of the PSR; is 
 
         15   that correct? 
 
         16          A.   That's a separate question? 
 
         17          Q.   I believe that's what's shown on 
 
         18   Attachment 1. 
 
         19          A.   It doesn't say anything about PSR on here 
 
         20   at all. 
 
         21          Q.   Would you agree that that's an analysis 
 
         22   of the net cost of the OVEC entitlement including the 
 
         23   period of the PSR? 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         25   form. 
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          1          A.   Could you read the question back? 
 
          2          Q.   Would you agree with me that the first 
 
          3   page of that exhibit is a calculation of the net cost 
 
          4   of -- of OVEC over the -- over a period of time 
 
          5   including the term of the PSR? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          7   form. 
 
          8          Q.   Do you understand the question? 
 
          9          A.   I think I do.  It doesn't look like -- 
 
         10   again, this looks like it shows generation volumes at 
 
         11   PJM capacity price, revenue, costs, and cash flow, 
 
         12   has energy prices and cost rate on the bottom.  It 
 
         13   doesn't say anything about a PSR or net costs or net 
 
         14   benefits or anything that you said in the question. 
 
         15          Q.   We can agree it doesn't state "PSR" on 
 
         16   this exhibit, correct? 
 
         17          A.   I can agree to that.  I don't see it on 
 
         18   here. 
 
         19          Q.   But it does show a calculation of the net 
 
         20   cost in terms of the cash flow from operating OVEC 
 
         21   over the indicated period on the schedule -- that's 
 
         22   not confidential, is it? 
 
         23               MR. BERGER:  The period that's shown on 
 
         24   this schedule, Amy, would not be confidential? 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  Probably not.  The 2015 to 
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          1   2024? 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  Yes. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  Okay.  No, that's fine. 
 
          4   That's not the PSR term but that's fine. 
 
          5          Q.   Would you agree this shows a calculation 
 
          6   of a net cost or benefit over 2015 to 2024? 
 
          7          A.   Again, it shows a cash flow calculation 
 
          8   for a period of time. 
 
          9          Q.   Are you aware of any cash flow 
 
         10   calculation from OVEC that includes the period -- the 
 
         11   period of the PSR in this case other than this 
 
         12   exhibit? 
 
         13          A.   I am sure there are others but.  This one 
 
         14   has values as of June, 2014, and values as of 
 
         15   January, 2014, so those change. 
 
         16          Q.   When you say you're sure there are other 
 
         17   calculations, are you referring to anything specific 
 
         18   that you are aware of? 
 
         19          A.   Again, on the bottom of this document it 
 
         20   has dates and so change the dates and there is a 
 
         21   different calculation. 
 
         22          Q.   Are you aware of any other calculation 
 
         23   that's been specifically performed regarding the net 
 
         24   cost or benefit of OVEC -- 
 
         25          A.   Again, you keeping taking me back to this 
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          1   net cost or benefit so what I am looking at here is 
 
          2   the cash flow over a period of time for OVEC. 
 
          3          Q.   Cash flow/cost of benefit I'm 
 
          4   interpreting as the same thing. 
 
          5          A.   Yeah.  So I think there could be other 
 
          6   benefits outside of just cash flow but if you want to 
 
          7   just talk about cash flow, there is a statement of 
 
          8   cash flows here, and I would tell you there are other 
 
          9   calculations if you change the time.  These are as of 
 
         10   June, 2014, and as of January, 2014, for different 
 
         11   periods of time on the document.  And so you could 
 
         12   change those dates and get a different calculation. 
 
         13          Q.   And you're familiar with other 
 
         14   calculations like this? 
 
         15          A.   No.  What I am saying is that there is -- 
 
         16   again, it looks like this was a spreadsheet, so you 
 
         17   could change the dates as to what the forward energy 
 
         18   prices were or forward capacity prices were, and you 
 
         19   would get a different value. 
 
         20          Q.   And all I am asking you is you know that 
 
         21   the other analyses like this have been done at 
 
         22   different dates. 
 
         23          A.   I would assume so. 
 
         24          Q.   I'm not asking whether you would assume. 
 
         25   I am asking whether you know. 
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          1          A.   Sure, I know. 
 
          2          Q.   Okay.  And this particular analysis you 
 
          3   are aware of when this was done? 
 
          4          A.   There's no date on here that I can -- 
 
          5          Q.   On page 2 it indicates December 11, 2013. 
 
          6          A.   Oh, okay.  I'm sorry, I was looking at 
 
          7   page 1.  So those are the -- that's the ICPA billable 
 
          8   costs that was published on 12-11-13. 
 
          9          Q.   And there have been a number of these 
 
         10   that have been done. 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  A number of? 
 
         12          A.   A number of what? 
 
         13          Q.   Analyses such as this. 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  I am going object.  Are you 
 
         15   referring to page 1 or page 2 now?  Because I think 
 
         16   we've already talked about page 1. 
 
         17          Q.   Are you aware of any other analyses in 
 
         18   the forms shown on page 1 that have been performed? 
 
         19          A.   I'm sure -- I am not aware of them, but I 
 
         20   am sure there have been changing the date, and I 
 
         21   would say the same thing on the ICPA, the billable 
 
         22   costs, those change, although probably not as readily 
 
         23   as the first sheet. 
 
         24          Q.   The costs of OVEC are pretty stable, but 
 
         25   they do change. 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                69 
          1               MS. SPILLER:  He just asked if we were 
 
          2   ever going to take a break.  I've indicated to the 
 
          3   witness whenever he needs -- 
 
          4               THE WITNESS:  So whenever it's convenient 
 
          5   for you. 
 
          6               MR. BERGER:  That's fine.  Now would be a 
 
          7   good time. 
 
          8               THE WITNESS:  That's fine with me if it 
 
          9   works. 
 
         10               MR. BERGER:  Do you want to take 5 
 
         11   minutes or 10 minutes? 
 
         12               MS. SPILLER:  Sure.  To those on the 
 
         13   phone we are going to mute you.  We will unmute you 
 
         14   in 10 minutes. 
 
         15               (Recess taken.) 
 
         16               MR. BERGER:  Back on the record. 
 
         17          Q.   Mr. Whitlock, Duke -- Duke Energy Ohio or 
 
         18   Duke Energy Corporation on its behalf developed 
 
         19   forecasts of future electric commodity prices; is 
 
         20   that correct? 
 
         21          A.   They do. 
 
         22          Q.   Does it also forecast future capacity 
 
         23   prices for electricity? 
 
         24          A.   Yeah.  And they are related, right. 
 
         25          Q.   Are those forecasts both on a short-term 
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          1   basis and long-term basis extending out years at a 
 
          2   time? 
 
          3          A.   So my familiarity with the fundamental 
 
          4   forecast that Duke does has a market for a certain 
 
          5   period of time, transactable market, and then after 
 
          6   that, it becomes a fundamental curve. 
 
          7          Q.   Okay.  What department is responsible for 
 
          8   developing those forecasts? 
 
          9          A.   I don't know -- I don't know the name of 
 
         10   the department. 
 
         11          Q.   Is that developed at the Duke Energy 
 
         12   Corporation level for all of the subsidiaries or is 
 
         13   that something that's done on an 
 
         14   affiliate-by-affiliate basis? 
 
         15          A.   No.  I would say -- my familiarity with 
 
         16   it, again, is it's done at a corporate level.  It's 
 
         17   called a Duke fundamental curve, right. 
 
         18               MS. BOJKO:  Called what? 
 
         19               THE WITNESS:  It's a Duke fundamental 
 
         20   curve is how I have always heard it referred to. 
 
         21          Q.   Is this done internally or do you hire 
 
         22   outside experts for this type of forecasting? 
 
         23          A.   So I believe we have outside help. 
 
         24   Again, I am not super familiar with it, but my 
 
         25   understanding is that we -- we probably see a lot of 
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          1   third-party forecasts, and then we retain a 
 
          2   consultant that helps us develop a fundamental curve. 
 
          3   And then we -- my guess is we probably make changes 
 
          4   to some of those things.  We don't take those 
 
          5   verbatim and will change other things that we think 
 
          6   are going to materialize and then it gets fed back 
 
          7   through their model and then we get a result in the 
 
          8   fundamental curve. 
 
          9          Q.   Do you know how often the forecasts are 
 
         10   updated? 
 
         11          A.   I want to say annually but they might be 
 
         12   done biannually but I don't recall. 
 
         13          Q.   And when you say that, you're talking 
 
         14   about the fundamental long-term forecast. 
 
         15          A.   Correct. 
 
         16          Q.   For those short-term forecasting, 
 
         17   however, is there -- 
 
         18          A.   So I wouldn't call it a forecast there, 
 
         19   right?  Again, it's a market price that's observable. 
 
         20          Q.   And when you say observable market price, 
 
         21   is there a limit to the timeframe for that?  What is 
 
         22   the limit? 
 
         23          A.   So it would depend on which commodity 
 
         24   you're talking about. 
 
         25          Q.   If we're talking about energy prices. 
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          1          A.   So energy is probably, again, depending 
 
          2   on the location.  Did you have a specific location in 
 
          3   mind? 
 
          4          Q.   No, wherever the Duke hub is or in 
 
          5   Cincinnati. 
 
          6          A.   There is no Duke hub. 
 
          7          Q.   Isn't there -- the AD Hub. 
 
          8          A.   So the AD Hub so probably three years 
 
          9   maybe out to five. 
 
         10          Q.   Okay.  Is there a particular individual 
 
         11   who is primarily responsible for these forecasting 
 
         12   efforts? 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         14   relevance.  Go ahead. 
 
         15          A.   Again, you are talking about the 
 
         16   forecasting beyond the -- beyond the observable 
 
         17   market.  Again, I think it's a team of people that do 
 
         18   the work. 
 
         19          Q.   You don't know what department that is. 
 
         20          A.   I told you I can't remember. 
 
         21          Q.   And with respect to the observable market 
 
         22   prices, when you are talking about the forward market 
 
         23   price, do you -- does Duke to the best of your 
 
         24   knowledge rely on any particular publication for 
 
         25   the -- for those prices? 
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          1          A.   Yeah.  So there is a procedure every 
 
          2   night that the curves are marked so we observe 
 
          3   tradeable commodities and we mark those and then the 
 
          4   risk group that sits outside of, reports to the chief 
 
          5   risk officer, actually validates those curves.  And 
 
          6   they would be -- you would be better off asking them 
 
          7   how that validation process takes place.  They 
 
          8   probably use a variety of different ICME broker 
 
          9   quotes to make sure that we're -- where we had marked 
 
         10   the curve on that day. 
 
         11          Q.   Now, the OEG data request response that I 
 
         12   earlier referenced you to, the Attachment 1, do you 
 
         13   recall that? 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  Do you need it back? 
 
         15          A.   Exhibit 1 or Attachment 1? 
 
         16          Q.   We did not make this an exhibit yet. 
 
         17          A.   So this, yeah. 
 
         18          Q.   Do you know -- do you know what forecast 
 
         19   that utilized? 
 
         20          A.   Again, I just refer to the notes on the 
 
         21   bottom of the page and assume that they are accurate. 
 
         22          Q.   Was this -- was this document by the way 
 
         23   prepared by OVEC, or was it prepared by Duke Energy 
 
         24   Ohio? 
 
         25          A.   So there's two pages to the document. 
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          1   The second page is prepared by -- it looks like it's 
 
          2   prepared by OVEC, and then the first page appears to 
 
          3   be prepared by Duke. 
 
          4          Q.   What makes you believe the first page is 
 
          5   prepared by Duke? 
 
          6          A.   It's similar to a format that I see 
 
          7   for -- it looks like something that Bryan Dougherty 
 
          8   would prepare. 
 
          9          Q.   Okay.  Now we know what Bryan does. 
 
         10   Okay. 
 
         11          A.   Prepares similar documents. 
 
         12          Q.   Yes.  Do you know whether Duke Energy 
 
         13   Ohio notified PJM that it no longer wants to have FRR 
 
         14   entity status and when that occurred? 
 
         15               MS. SPILLER:  Whoa, whoa.  Objection, 
 
         16   Tad.  Come on.  What does FRR participation have to 
 
         17   do with this ESP III? 
 
         18               MR. BERGER:  It goes to the -- it goes to 
 
         19   the characterization of OVEC costs as a necessary 
 
         20   capacity to be retained. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  For what?  We're not 
 
         22   looking to retain OVEC to serve any supply or 
 
         23   capacity obligations.  That's not what the structure 
 
         24   of the price stabilization rider even is so help me 
 
         25   understand.  Otherwise we are not going to spend time 
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          1   on fixed resource requirement. 
 
          2               MR. BERGER:  All right.  I'll pass on to 
 
          3   something else.  Thank you. 
 
          4               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
          5          Q.   And, Mr. Whitlock, are you familiar in 
 
          6   this proceeding with whether Duke Energy Ohio 
 
          7   presented a forecast of -- of the net cost or benefit 
 
          8   of OVEC in its application in this case? 
 
          9          A.   I'm not familiar. 
 
         10          Q.   Are you -- are you aware of whether or 
 
         11   not Duke Energy Ohio said that -- that OVEC would be 
 
         12   revenue neutral over the term of the ESP? 
 
         13          A.   That feels like the same question but so 
 
         14   I'm not -- again, I am not -- I haven't read it. 
 
         15               MS. BOJKO:  Did you say you haven't read 
 
         16   it? 
 
         17               THE WITNESS:  Have not. 
 
         18               MS. BOJKO:  Thank you. 
 
         19          Q.   And other than OEG-DR-01-01, the 
 
         20   attachment that you are looking at, and just looking 
 
         21   at page 1, are you aware of -- I think you answered 
 
         22   earlier that you could see other analyses like this 
 
         23   being prepared.  Have you -- I think you said you 
 
         24   haven't seen other specific analysis though; is that 
 
         25   correct? 
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          1          A.   Again, I don't recall seeing any specific 
 
          2   analysis; but, again, I would say that it's likely 
 
          3   that there are others. 
 
          4          Q.   Okay.  Are you on any other committees 
 
          5   other than the Executive Committee of OVEC? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Within OVEC? 
 
          7               MR. BERGER:  Within OVEC. 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
          9          A.   No. 
 
         10          Q.   Are you aware of any other Duke Energy 
 
         11   Ohio personnel or Duke Energy Corporation personnel 
 
         12   that are on other committees within OVEC? 
 
         13          A.   I believe there are other shared service 
 
         14   employees that are on committees but not Duke 
 
         15   Energy -- again, I don't know who a Duke Energy 
 
         16   employee is. 
 
         17          Q.   Well, I am talking about a shared 
 
         18   services employee when I am talking about that 
 
         19   umbrella corporation. 
 
         20          A.   Okay.  So then I would say yes. 
 
         21          Q.   Can you tell me who they are? 
 
         22          A.   So Greg Cecil is on the production 
 
         23   subcommittee.  I'm not sure.  There is a fuels group. 
 
         24   I'm not sure who is on that now. 
 
         25          Q.   Are you currently serving on the board of 
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          1   OVEC? 
 
          2          A.   I am. 
 
          3          Q.   And other than fuels group and 
 
          4   production, do you know of any other? 
 
          5          A.   There is a list of subcommittees that -- 
 
          6          Q.   So you're saying you believe there is a 
 
          7   number of Duke Energy shared services employees who 
 
          8   are on different committees and subcommittees at 
 
          9   OVEC? 
 
         10          A.   Correct. 
 
         11          Q.   You're just not familiar with the whole 
 
         12   list? 
 
         13          A.   Correct.  It's not something that I keep 
 
         14   track of. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  Other than Greg Cecil, is there 
 
         16   anybody who is involved in operations at OVEC from 
 
         17   Duke Energy shared services or Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  I'm sorry.  Karen, can you 
 
         19   read that back? 
 
         20               (Record read.) 
 
         21          A.   Yes. 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         23   form.  Are you suggesting Greg Cecil is involved in 
 
         24   operations for OVEC? 
 
         25               MR. BERGER:  Well, he was stated to be on 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                78 
          1   the production committee or subcommittee. 
 
          2          A.   He doesn't operate OVEC. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  I withdraw that suggestion then. 
 
          4   Can you -- is there anybody at Duke Energy Ohio or 
 
          5   Duke Energy shared services that is involved in the 
 
          6   operations of OVEC? 
 
          7          A.   No. 
 
          8          Q.   Would you agree with me Duke -- that OVEC 
 
          9   currently sells 100 percent of its energy and 
 
         10   capacity into the PJM market, wholesale market? 
 
         11          A.   I don't know. 
 
         12          Q.   Do you know if it has any -- strike that. 
 
         13               What makes -- what makes you believe that 
 
         14   other than selling its energy and capacity into the 
 
         15   wholesale market there might be some other sales that 
 
         16   take place? 
 
         17          A.   So there are owners that are outside of 
 
         18   PJM that I'm not sure how that works. 
 
         19          Q.   With respect to the owners in PJM, would 
 
         20   that all be sold into the wholesale market, or would 
 
         21   that be directed to any specific utilities who were 
 
         22   sponsoring companies? 
 
         23          A.   Again, I think you're asking me to 
 
         24   understand how each of the owners handled their OVEC 
 
         25   ownership and I don't know.  I could guess but I'm 
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          1   not inclined to guess. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  I would rather you not. 
 
          3               THE WITNESS:  Might even be a pretty good 
 
          4   guess. 
 
          5          Q.   Can you -- can you indicate to me the 
 
          6   activities in which the OVEC Executive Committee of 
 
          7   which you are a member is involved? 
 
          8          A.   Yes.  So we deal with capital -- capital 
 
          9   budgets, O&M budgets.  We deal with financing.  We 
 
         10   deal with compensation issues.  We deal with legal 
 
         11   issues.  We'll deal with the preparation.  You know, 
 
         12   we have an accountant that prepares financial 
 
         13   statements, provides guidance to the management team 
 
         14   at OVEC around issues that they would bring to us. 
 
         15               MR. BERGER:  Okay.  Well, at this point 
 
         16   that's all the questions I have on the -- on the 
 
         17   public record.  And so I would hold my other 
 
         18   questions until we go into the confidential record. 
 
         19               I would ask other counsel if they have 
 
         20   questions for the public record before we do that. 
 
         21               MR. PRITCHARD:  I would be happy to go 
 
         22   next. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Ladies?  Gentlemen?  Thank 
 
         24   you.  Matt. 
 
         25 
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          1                     CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          2   By Mr. Pritchard: 
 
          3          Q.   Good morning, Mr. Whitlock. 
 
          4          A.   It's afternoon. 
 
          5          Q.   A little bit after.  My name is Matt 
 
          6   Pritchard.  I represent the Industrial Energy Users 
 
          7   of Ohio.  I have a couple follow-up questions to some 
 
          8   of your responses you gave to Mr. Berger this 
 
          9   morning. 
 
         10               Referencing what you have in front of 
 
         11   you, you had indicated that you had seen spreadsheets 
 
         12   similar to that from another shared services 
 
         13   employee.  I believe his name was Bryan Dougherty; is 
 
         14   that correct?  Did you make that statement? 
 
         15          A.   So we probably -- we should probably go 
 
         16   back.  If that's what I said on the record, I will 
 
         17   stipulate to that or whatever. 
 
         18          Q.   I can ask that again.  Have you seen 
 
         19   spreadsheets similar to that provided to you or 
 
         20   prepared by Bryan Dougherty? 
 
         21          A.   So, again, I would tell you that I think 
 
         22   this document looks like a pretty standard document, 
 
         23   and when you update prices on the observable market, 
 
         24   it wouldn't surprise me if I had seen other documents 
 
         25   like it but I can't recollect right now whether or 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                81 
          1   not that's true but I believe it to be true. 
 
          2          Q.   Would some of those other similar 
 
          3   documents have information instead of related to OVEC 
 
          4   would it be related to other generation plants 
 
          5   previously owned by Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
          6          A.   So would I see a similar document with -- 
 
          7   similar cash flow document for other generation 
 
          8   assets; is that the question? 
 
          9          Q.   Yes. 
 
         10          A.   Yes. 
 
         11          Q.   Okay.  And on to a couple of questions 
 
         12   about the operation of OVEC.  Who operates OVEC? 
 
         13          A.   So the management team of OVEC are the 
 
         14   operators -- 
 
         15          Q.   And -- 
 
         16          A.   -- and the employees of OVEC. 
 
         17          Q.   As far as Duke's ownership share of OVEC, 
 
         18   what percent of OVEC's capacity and energy is Duke 
 
         19   Energy Ohio entitled to? 
 
         20          A.   I want to say it's 9 percent.  It's on -- 
 
         21   let me refer to the ICPA. 
 
         22               MR. WATHEN:  Page 5, Chuck. 
 
         23          A.   Nine. 
 
         24          Q.   And with Duke Energy Ohio's 9 percent, 
 
         25   that 9 percent means they are entitled to 9 percent 
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          1   of any capacity revenues that OVEC receives?  Let me 
 
          2   back that up a little bit.  Strike that question. 
 
          3               Does OVEC receive any -- or does Duke 
 
          4   Energy Ohio receive any capacity revenues associated 
 
          5   with its OVEC interest? 
 
          6          A.   Yes. 
 
          7          Q.   And those capacity revenues are a 
 
          8   function of the OVEC units being bid into PJM's RPM 
 
          9   markets, correct? 
 
         10          A.   Yes. 
 
         11          Q.   How does Duke -- does Duke decide whether 
 
         12   to bid its 9 percent ownership -- or, sorry, 
 
         13   9 percent entitlement into the RPM markets, or does 
 
         14   someone else make that decision? 
 
         15          A.   Duke does. 
 
         16          Q.   And with the energy portion, the 9 
 
         17   percent energy that Duke Energy Ohio is entitled to, 
 
         18   is Duke Energy Ohio obligated to take all 9 percent? 
 
         19          A.   So there are some -- there are some 
 
         20   provisions of the agreement that make the obligation 
 
         21   not an obligation, and I'm not that faciled with what 
 
         22   those provisions are. 
 
         23          Q.   For general terms for the energy portion 
 
         24   Duke does not have -- can take up to 9 percent or 
 
         25   does not have to take any energy from the output of 
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          1   OVEC?  Would you characterize that as how it -- the 
 
          2   ICPA generally governs? 
 
          3          A.   So repeat the question, please. 
 
          4          Q.   General -- in general terms Duke can take 
 
          5   up to 9 percent of the energy output of OVEC assuming 
 
          6   all the other sponsoring companies take their full 
 
          7   allotment. 
 
          8          A.   I think generally that's probably fair. 
 
          9          Q.   And with the amount of energy that Duke 
 
         10   decides to take, does Duke itself sell the energy, or 
 
         11   does someone at OVEC sell the energy either into a 
 
         12   bilateral contract or PJM's markets? 
 
         13               THE WITNESS:  Can you read the question 
 
         14   back? 
 
         15               (Record read.) 
 
         16          A.   Duke does. 
 
         17          Q.   And those questions I asked are how Duke 
 
         18   currently operates, correct? 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   If the PSR rider is approved, would Duke 
 
         21   then continue to be the entity that would operate -- 
 
         22   that would sell the energy into the PJM market? 
 
         23          A.   I'm not familiar with the PSR. 
 
         24          Q.   If OVEC is not transferred over the next 
 
         25   four years, would Duke Energy Ohio continue to be 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                                84 
          1   responsible for making decisions about whether to 
 
          2   take up to its -- to take its 9 percent share of 
 
          3   energy from OVEC? 
 
          4          A.   So I would say the owner -- the owner -- 
 
          5   the owner of the ICPA would do exactly what you are 
 
          6   talking about, energy -- 
 
          7          Q.   So as long as -- 
 
          8          A.   -- and capacity. 
 
          9          Q.   As long as Duke Energy Ohio is a 
 
         10   sponsoring company of OVEC, it will decide whether it 
 
         11   wants to take the out -- the energy output that its 
 
         12   entitled to from OVEC, correct? 
 
         13          A.   Again, I -- it feels like that to me, but 
 
         14   you -- you could have somebody else do that for you 
 
         15   if you wanted to.  I'm not sure -- I'm not sure what 
 
         16   Duke Ohio's plans are. 
 
         17          Q.   And turning to one of the final subjects 
 
         18   you talked about with Mr. Berger with OCC, you 
 
         19   indicated that you were on the executive committee, 
 
         20   and one of the things the executive committee is 
 
         21   responsible for is OVEC's capital budget; is that 
 
         22   correct? 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   Are you aware -- and stop me -- is -- are 
 
         25   the individual elements of OVEC's capital budget 
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          1   confidential? 
 
          2          A.   I would assume that they are. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  I will save those questions for 
 
          4   the confidential portion. 
 
          5               MR. PRITCHARD:  And just to clarify 
 
          6   questions regarding Duke Energy Ohio's decisions to 
 
          7   transfer or not transfer its interests in OVEC are 
 
          8   going to be confidential?  I believe that's what you 
 
          9   discussed with Mr. Berger this morning; is that 
 
         10   correct? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  That the conversations that 
 
         12   would have been had among sponsoring companies would 
 
         13   be confidential based upon the communication we've 
 
         14   received from OVEC's counsel. 
 
         15               MR. PRITCHARD:  Are Duke's internal 
 
         16   decisions whether they would pursue a transfer or 
 
         17   retain its OVEC interests confidential? 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  Those are privileged, 
 
         19   attorney-client privileged. 
 
         20               MR. PRITCHARD:  Some statements have been 
 
         21   publicly made in filings so they are not all -- 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  Well, you have asked me 
 
         23   about internal conversations so. 
 
         24               MR. PRITCHARD:  Well, I will just proceed 
 
         25   to ask some questions, and you can stop me if they 
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          1   are confidential. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  We will take it from there. 
 
          3          Q.   (By Mr. Pritchard) Earlier you went 
 
          4   through a stipulation in a Duke electric security 
 
          5   plan case that -- in Case 11-3549, correct? 
 
          6          A.   Yes. 
 
          7          Q.   And you went through some provisions 
 
          8   about -- that were generally related to Duke Energy 
 
          9   Ohio's -- what it planned to do in regards to 
 
         10   divesting certain generation assets that at the time 
 
         11   were owned by Duke Energy Ohio, correct? 
 
         12          A.   Yeah.  So, I mean, I read into -- I read 
 
         13   into the record, I guess, or into my deposition a 
 
         14   section off of -- a section of the stipulation. 
 
         15          Q.   Is it your general understanding that as 
 
         16   a result of this stipulation, that Duke committed to 
 
         17   trans -- Duke Energy Ohio committed to transferring 
 
         18   certain generation assets to an affiliate? 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   And is it your understanding of -- that 
 
         21   this stipulation required Duke Energy Ohio to 
 
         22   transfer its interests in OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         24   relevance of this line of questioning. 
 
         25          Q.   If you know, you may answer. 
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          1          A.   I would say no. 
 
          2          Q.   And following this stipulation, did Duke 
 
          3   Energy Ohio have plans to transfer its interest in 
 
          4   OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
          6          A.   Yes. 
 
          7          Q.   And did Duke Energy Ohio, in fact, follow 
 
          8   through with those plans and transfer its interests 
 
          9   in OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
         10          A.   No. 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
         12               THE WITNESS:  Sorry. 
 
         13          Q.   What -- in between the time when Duke had 
 
         14   planned to transfer its interests and today where it 
 
         15   has not transferred -- well, let me back up. 
 
         16               Currently does Duke Energy Ohio plan to 
 
         17   transfer its interests in OVEC to an affiliate? 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  Objection.  To the extent 
 
         19   you can answer without waiving privileges. 
 
         20          A.   I don't know. 
 
         21          Q.   You don't know whether or not Duke Energy 
 
         22   Ohio proposes to transfer its interests in OVEC. 
 
         23          A.   That was your question. 
 
         24          Q.   And your answer is you don't know? 
 
         25          A.   Currently. 
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          1          Q.   Currently. 
 
          2          A.   Right. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  Between the time when -- following 
 
          4   that stipulation when Duke Energy Ohio had planned to 
 
          5   transfer its interests in OVEC to an affiliate, what 
 
          6   has transpired to change Duke Energy Ohio's position 
 
          7   about whether it was going to transfer -- let me back 
 
          8   that up. 
 
          9               Are you familiar with Duke Energy Ohio's 
 
         10   application before the Federal Energy Regulatory 
 
         11   Commission regarding Duke Energy Ohio's proposal to 
 
         12   transfer assets that were owned by Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         13   to affiliates? 
 
         14          A.   Yes. 
 
         15          Q.   Are you aware -- as part of that request 
 
         16   to FERC, are you aware of whether or not Duke Energy 
 
         17   Ohio also proposed to transfer its interests in OVEC 
 
         18   to an affiliate? 
 
         19          A.   Do you have -- is that the 203 filing? 
 
         20   Do you have the request? 
 
         21          Q.   Yeah, I have that if that would refresh 
 
         22   your recollection. 
 
         23          A.   Let's look at it instead of speculating 
 
         24   whether or not it's in there or not. 
 
         25          Q.   I don't plan to mark this as an exhibit 
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          1   but maybe this can refresh your recollection. 
 
          2          A.   Is there a section that lists them? 
 
          3          Q.   There is -- there is a table of contents 
 
          4   at the beginning. 
 
          5          A.   Okay. 
 
          6          Q.   And I believe around page 15 it -- at the 
 
          7   beginning in the table of contents it references what 
 
          8   section of that document contains the terms of the 
 
          9   proposed transfer. 
 
         10               MR. OLIKER:  Do you have the case number, 
 
         11   Matt? 
 
         12               MR. PRITCHARD:  It's FERC Docket EC12-90. 
 
         13          A.   So this doesn't even have that docket 
 
         14   number on it. 
 
         15          Q.   Correct.  That was your application. 
 
         16          A.   Oh, okay.  Fair enough.  So did it change 
 
         17   from this and what actually went into the docket? 
 
         18          Q.   No, when you filed. 
 
         19          A.   So they put a number on it. 
 
         20          Q.   Yes. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  I think you've got the 
 
         22   legend up here and I am -- that I would suspect is a 
 
         23   designation of receipt by the FERC, I think, right? 
 
         24               THE WITNESS:  I don't know.  It says 
 
         25   "FERC PDF unofficial."  I don't know. 
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          1          A.   Okay. 
 
          2          Q.   Does that refresh your recollection as to 
 
          3   whether or not that application included a proposal 
 
          4   by Duke Energy Ohio to transfer its interests in OVEC 
 
          5   to an affiliate? 
 
          6          A.   Yes. 
 
          7          Q.   And with your refreshed recollection, is 
 
          8   it your recollection that Duke Energy Ohio did, in 
 
          9   fact, propose such a transfer? 
 
         10          A.   It planned -- it planned a transfer for 
 
         11   Duke Energy Piketon, right, DE Ohio's share of OVEC. 
 
         12   And I think it says subject to various tax and 
 
         13   commercial issues but. 
 
         14          Q.   Correct.  Are you aware that Duke Energy 
 
         15   Ohio transferred all of its generation assets but did 
 
         16   not transfer its interest in OVEC to its affiliates? 
 
         17          A.   Yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And do you know why Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         19   decided not to transfer its interests in OVEC to an 
 
         20   affiliate? 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object.  To 
 
         22   the extent you can answer without divulging 
 
         23   privileges and also relevance. 
 
         24          A.   So that feels like a topic that was board 
 
         25   conversations of OVEC's board members that I don't 
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          1   believe are public. 
 
          2          Q.   That's fine.  I can ask that in the 
 
          3   confidential portion. 
 
          4          A.   Okay. 
 
          5          Q.   I have questions about a few OVEC-related 
 
          6   documents.  As a member of OVEC's Executive 
 
          7   Committee, are you familiar with the annual FERC Form 
 
          8   1s that OVEC files? 
 
          9          A.   Do you have them? 
 
         10          Q.   I do have them in front of me.  Are you 
 
         11   familiar that Duke does file -- OVEC does file a FERC 
 
         12   Form 1? 
 
         13          A.   Yes. 
 
         14          Q.   I'm handing you what is the 2012 FERC 
 
         15   Form 1. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  How are you going to mark 
 
         17   it? 
 
         18               MR. PRITCHARD:  I am going to mark this 
 
         19   IEU Ohio Deposition Exhibit 1. 
 
         20          Q.   Does what I handed you appear to be -- 
 
         21          A.   Do I need to give it to the reporter? 
 
         22               MS. GRADY:  You don't get a sticker. 
 
         23               THE WITNESS:  I got a sticker on the 
 
         24   other three.  This is confusing. 
 
         25               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
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          1          Q.   Does what I have handed you and what's 
 
          2   been marked as IEU-Ohio Deposition Exhibit 1 appear 
 
          3   to be the FERC Form 1 for OVEC for 2012? 
 
          4          A.   Yes. 
 
          5          Q.   Now, this report is made each -- each 
 
          6   year so for the report for -- this report for 2012 
 
          7   will be produced and filed at FERC in the beginning 
 
          8   portion of 2013, correct? 
 
          9          A.   Yes. 
 
         10          Q.   And would you say that this report is 
 
         11   prepared by knowledgeable people within OVEC? 
 
         12          A.   So John Brodt signed it, and I think he 
 
         13   is knowledgeable. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay. 
 
         15          A.   And then it looks like Deloitte Touche 
 
         16   actually audited it so I would say yes. 
 
         17          Q.   And does OVEC regularly produce -- sorry. 
 
         18   Does OVEC regularly produce these documents to FERC? 
 
         19          A.   They are going to produce them as FERC 
 
         20   requests them.  They are going to follow the rules. 
 
         21          Q.   And do the FERC rules require the FERC 
 
         22   Form 1 to be filed each year? 
 
         23          A.   I believe so but I'm not sure. 
 
         24          Q.   All right.  Those are all the questions I 
 
         25   have for the 2012 FERC Form 1. 
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          1          A.   Just -- so the answer it looks look FERC 
 
          2   Form 1s is an annual regulatory requirement.  Page I, 
 
          3   I guess the first page where there is instructions 
 
          4   for the filing of the FERC form. 
 
          5          Q.   And -- and the information contained in 
 
          6   here is regularly kept by OVEC? 
 
          7          A.   Yes, for OVEC's stuff. 
 
          8          Q.   Correct. 
 
          9          A.   Right, yeah. 
 
         10               MR. PRITCHARD:  I would like to have 
 
         11   another exhibit, this exhibit, marked as IEU-Ohio 
 
         12   Deposition Exhibit 2. 
 
         13               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
         14          Q.   And does this document that's been marked 
 
         15   as IEU-Ohio Deposition Exhibit 2 appear to be OVEC's 
 
         16   2013 FERC Form 1? 
 
         17          A.   Yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And the same questions I asked you about 
 
         19   the 2012 report but these -- this report would have 
 
         20   been made at or near the time of 2013.  It would have 
 
         21   been filed at the beginning part of 2014, correct? 
 
         22          A.   You can see the date that John submitted 
 
         23   it. 
 
         24          Q.   Okay.  So your answer is -- 
 
         25          A.   You can see the date. 
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          1          Q.   And the date is? 
 
          2          A.   It looks like 5-15-2014. 
 
          3          Q.   Thank you.  And would you say that this 
 
          4   report was prepared by a person with knowledge? 
 
          5          A.   Again, I would say John Brodt has 
 
          6   knowledge as the CFO and secretary of OVEC. 
 
          7          Q.   And the information contained in this 
 
          8   report is regularly maintained by OVEC, correct? 
 
          9          A.   Again, I would say yes. 
 
         10          Q.   And this report is regularly filed with 
 
         11   FERC each year, correct? 
 
         12          A.   Yes. 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  Going through your piles 
 
         14   quickly. 
 
         15               MR. PRITCHARD:  I know.  I am trying to 
 
         16   be efficient. 
 
         17               MS. SPILLER:  Appreciate that, 
 
         18   Mr. Pritchard. 
 
         19               MR. PRITCHARD:  I would like to mark an 
 
         20   exhibit as IEU-Ohio Deposition Exhibit 3.  Let the 
 
         21   record reflect this document is labeled Ohio Valley 
 
         22   Electric Corporation and Subsidiary Company 
 
         23   Consolidated Financial Statements as of and for the 
 
         24   Years Ended December 31, 2013, and 2012, and 
 
         25   Independent Auditor's Report. 
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          1               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
          2          Q.   Are you familiar with this report, 
 
          3   Mr. Whitlock? 
 
          4          A.   Yes. 
 
          5          Q.   And would this report have been made 
 
          6   shortly after December 31, 2013? 
 
          7          A.   Again, you can see the date that at least 
 
          8   the auditor's report was. 
 
          9          Q.   And the date of the auditor's report is 
 
         10   reflected on page 2 as what? 
 
         11          A.   April 16, 2014. 
 
         12          Q.   And was this report prepared by a person 
 
         13   with knowledge? 
 
         14          A.   Yes. 
 
         15          Q.   And is the information contained in this 
 
         16   report regularly maintained by OVEC? 
 
         17          A.   Yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And does OVEC regularly produce a report 
 
         19   like this? 
 
         20          A.   So they produce it at least annually, if 
 
         21   that's regularly. 
 
         22          Q.   Thank you. 
 
         23               MR. PRITCHARD:  I would like to mark an 
 
         24   exhibit as IEU-Ohio Deposition Exhibit 4.  And let 
 
         25   the record reflect this exhibit is titled "Annual 
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          1   Report 2012 Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and 
 
          2   Subsidiary Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation." 
 
          3   Are you familiar with this report? 
 
          4          A.   Yes. 
 
          5          Q.   And in your opinion was this report 
 
          6   prepared by a person with knowledge? 
 
          7          A.   Yes. 
 
          8          Q.   And is the information that's maintained 
 
          9   or reflected in this report information that's about 
 
         10   OVEC's regularly conducted business activities? 
 
         11          A.   Could you repeat the question? 
 
         12          Q.   Yes.  Is the information that's reflected 
 
         13   in this report, does it reflect OVEC's regularly 
 
         14   conducted business activities? 
 
         15          A.   So I would say that it reflects the 
 
         16   business activities in that year.  I don't know if 
 
         17   they are regular without -- I can't remember all the 
 
         18   activities that would have took place in this year. 
 
         19   Whether they are regular or not I'm not sure. 
 
         20          Q.   More generally speaking you said you are 
 
         21   familiar with this report.  Would you -- do you need 
 
         22   to take a minute to peruse through the report -- 
 
         23          A.   Is there a specific section you want to 
 
         24   take me to? 
 
         25          Q.   I am referring to the entire report so if 
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          1   you need a minute to refresh your recollection of -- 
 
          2          A.   Why don't we see where the questions go. 
 
          3          Q.   Same questions I've asked you before, 
 
          4   just asking if the information that's contained in 
 
          5   the -- in the report is information that is kept in 
 
          6   the course of OVEC's regularly conducted business 
 
          7   activities. 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          9   extent Mr. Whitlock has already answered. 
 
         10          A.   It appears to.  I would say without -- 
 
         11   with the exception of maybe the message from the 
 
         12   president but the rest is an annual report.  That 
 
         13   should reflect the normal business or the regularly 
 
         14   recurring business of OVEC. 
 
         15               MR. PRITCHARD:  And I would like to mark 
 
         16   a final exhibit as IEU-Ohio Deposition Exhibit 5. 
 
         17               (EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.) 
 
         18               MR. PRITCHARD:  And let the record 
 
         19   reflect that this document is titled "Annual Report 
 
         20   2013 Ohio Valley Electric Corporation and Subsidiary 
 
         21   Indiana-Kentucky Electric Corporation." 
 
         22          Q.   Are you familiar with this report? 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   And is this report prepared by a person 
 
         25   with knowledge? 
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          1          A.   Yes. 
 
          2          Q.   And does OVEC regularly keep -- I'm 
 
          3   sorry.  Is this report kept in the course of 
 
          4   regularly conducted business activity? 
 
          5          A.   Yes. 
 
          6          Q.   And is it a regular practice of OVEC to 
 
          7   make this report? 
 
          8          A.   Again, if regular is defined annually, we 
 
          9   get an annual report. 
 
         10          Q.   That's all the questions about this 
 
         11   document.  Thank you. 
 
         12          A.   Thank you. 
 
         13               MR. PRITCHARD:  If you will allow me one 
 
         14   second, I think I've finished up my public 
 
         15   cross-examination. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Sure. 
 
         17          Q.   A couple of additional questions, are you 
 
         18   familiar with the -- what consists of the individual 
 
         19   cost billed to Duke by OVEC as part of the ICPA? 
 
         20          A.   Yes. 
 
         21          Q.   And what are the -- let me back up. 
 
         22               As far as the costs that OVEC bills to 
 
         23   Duke, there is a demand charge portion, correct? 
 
         24          A.   Yes. 
 
         25          Q.   Or fixed charge? 
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          1          A.   So I would refer you to the ICPA.  It's 
 
          2   pretty explicit in how -- what the costs are billed. 
 
          3   So on 5.03 it spells out the demand charge in pretty 
 
          4   significant detail. 
 
          5          Q.   And if we look at -- well, all of Article 
 
          6   5 of the ICPA is titled "Charges for Available Power 
 
          7   and Minimum Loading Event Costs," correct -- 
 
          8          A.   Yes. 
 
          9          Q.   -- is the title?  And if we look through 
 
         10   Article 5, we see 5.01 details the total monthly 
 
         11   charge, correct? 
 
         12          A.   Yes. 
 
         13          Q.   And 5.02 breaks down the energy charge? 
 
         14          A.   Yes. 
 
         15          Q.   And similarly 5.03 breaks down the demand 
 
         16   charge? 
 
         17          A.   Yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And the demand charge continues for 
 
         19   several pages, but then on page 11 of the ICPA 5.04 
 
         20   details the transmission charge? 
 
         21          A.   Yes. 
 
         22          Q.   And 5.05 details minimum loading event 
 
         23   cost, correct? 
 
         24          A.   Yes. 
 
         25          Q.   And that these sections of the ICPA, if 
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          1   we go through them in detail, they would describe how 
 
          2   OVEC bills the monthly cost to Duke Energy Ohio, 
 
          3   correct? 
 
          4          A.   To the best of my knowledge, yes. 
 
          5               MR. PRITCHARD:  Okay.  Are you familiar 
 
          6   with -- strike that.  I have no further public 
 
          7   questions. 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  Thanks, Matt. 
 
          9               Joe? 
 
         10               MR. OLIKER:  Do you have any, Kim? 
 
         11               MS. BOJKO:  I do. 
 
         12               MR. OLIKER:  You do.  I'm trying to 
 
         13   streamline so I have less. 
 
         14               MR. BERGER:  Could we either take a 5 
 
         15   minute -- 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Is it going to be 5 minutes 
 
         17   or lunch? 
 
         18               THE WITNESS:  That works for me. 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  Okay.  So what time would 
 
         20   you like folks to dial back in who are on the line? 
 
         21               MR. BERGER:  20 after? 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  So I've got -- I've got a 
 
         23   quarter till. 
 
         24               MR. BERGER:  I have a quarter till so I'm 
 
         25   suggesting 1:20.  Is that enough? 
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          1               MS. BOJKO:  1:30. 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  1:30. 
 
          3               (Thereupon, at 12:45 p.m., a lunch recess 
 
          4   was taken.) 
 
          5                           - - - 
 
          6 
 
          7 
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          9 
 
         10 
 
         11 
 
         12 
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         16 
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          1                             Thursday Afternoon Session, 
 
          2                             September 11, 2014. 
 
          3                           - - - 
 
          4                    CHARLES R. WHITLOCK 
 
          5   being previously duly sworn, as hereinafter 
 
          6   certified, deposes and says further as follows: 
 
          7                     CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
          8   By Ms. Bojko: 
 
          9          Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Whitlock.  As you 
 
         10   know, I'm Kim Bojko, and I'm here on behalf of the 
 
         11   OMA, Ohio Manufacturers' Association, today.  I have 
 
         12   a couple of follow-up questions. 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  Can you on the line put 
 
         14   your phones on mute?  We're getting a lot of 
 
         15   background noise. 
 
         16               Hi, Ryan.  We are just resuming with Kim 
 
         17   Bojko's cross-examination of Mr. Whitlock. 
 
         18          Q.   Mr. Whitlock, I am going to follow up on 
 
         19   a couple of questions that were asked of you from the 
 
         20   blanks that I have, so it will be -- we will kind of 
 
         21   jump around to fill in those holes.  Do you have any 
 
         22   responsibilities currently for Duke Energy Ohio?  I 
 
         23   know you discussed earlier that you are with Duke 
 
         24   Energy services company, but do you have any direct 
 
         25   responsibilities for Duke Energy Ohio? 
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          1          A.   So I do in my gas LDC job. 
 
          2          Q.   Okay.  Do you have any for electric? 
 
          3          A.   No. 
 
          4          Q.   Okay.  And who actually has the ownership 
 
          5   interest in OVEC?  Which Duke company? 
 
          6          A.   I believe it's Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
          7          Q.   Okay.  So would it have been Duke 
 
          8   Energy -- would it have been Duke Energy Ohio that 
 
          9   you signed the ICPA document that we have been 
 
         10   discussing today? 
 
         11          A.   Yeah.  So it says Duke Energy Ohio, yeah. 
 
         12          Q.   And that's on whose behalf you signed the 
 
         13   agreement for? 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  I'm sorry, who just joined? 
 
         15               MR. SETTINERI:  This is Mike Settineri. 
 
         16          A.   Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         17          Q.   Okay.  And that's who you were signing on 
 
         18   behalf of? 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   Do you know is -- in this current ESP 
 
         21   proceeding is the recovery of costs associated with 
 
         22   OVEC a part of this proceeding? 
 
         23          A.   So I'm not familiar with the proceeding 
 
         24   actually.  I don't know. 
 
         25          Q.   Okay.  So who from Duke, DEO, Duke Energy 
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          1   Ohio -- you understand when I say DEO, I mean Duke 
 
          2   Energy Ohio. 
 
          3          A.   Yes. 
 
          4          Q.   Who from DEO is testifying to the OVEC 
 
          5   issue in this case? 
 
          6          A.   I'm not sure. 
 
          7          Q.   It's not you; is that right? 
 
          8          A.   It's not me. 
 
          9          Q.   And do you know in this proceeding who is 
 
         10   testifying with regard to the OVEC ICPA that we have 
 
         11   been discussing today? 
 
         12          A.   I do not. 
 
         13          Q.   Have you previously participated in Ohio 
 
         14   proceedings on behalf of Duke Ohio? 
 
         15          A.   I have. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, asked and 
 
         17   answered. 
 
         18          Q.   Did you -- have you previously testified 
 
         19   on behalf of Duke Energy Ohio in Ohio proceedings? 
 
         20          A.   I believe so, yes. 
 
         21          Q.   Okay.  But besides your gas affiliation 
 
         22   currently you do not believe that you have any Duke 
 
         23   Energy Ohio responsibilities with the company? 
 
         24          A.   That's correct. 
 
         25          Q.   Do you know which year you signed the 
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          1   OVEC ICPA? 
 
          2          A.   We could look at the date of it.  Does 
 
          3   the date on the cover -- it was reamended and 
 
          4   restated on September 10, 2010. 
 
          5          Q.   And at that time, December 10 of 2010, 
 
          6   did you have responsibilities for Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
          7          A.   I did. 
 
          8          Q.   And you currently participate on the 
 
          9   executive board for Duke Energy Ohio; is that 
 
         10   correct? 
 
         11          A.   I participate on the executive board for 
 
         12   Duke Energy Ohio? 
 
         13          Q.   I'm sorry, for OVEC on behalf of DEO. 
 
         14          A.   Yes. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  You discussed earlier regarding a 
 
         16   stipulation about the transfer of generating assets 
 
         17   in the last ESP case.  Do you recall that discussion? 
 
         18          A.   Yeah.  I think we were reading off the 
 
         19   page -- I think I basically read part of the 
 
         20   stipulation into the record. 
 
         21          Q.   And is it your understanding that the 
 
         22   Commission did approve that stipulation with the 
 
         23   provision that you discussed earlier with Mr. Berger? 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance.  Go 
 
         25   ahead. 
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          1          A.   Yeah, I believe so.  Yeah, I think the 
 
          2   Commission approved it.  It had that section that I 
 
          3   read. 
 
          4          Q.   And you stated you participated in that 
 
          5   specific proceeding? 
 
          6          A.   I did. 
 
          7          Q.   And that was on behalf of DE Ohio that 
 
          8   you participated in that proceeding? 
 
          9          A.   Yes. 
 
         10          Q.   In what capacity? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
         12          A.   I'm not sure what capacity actually.  I 
 
         13   was president of Midwest Commercial Generation. 
 
         14          Q.   The unregulated affiliate of DE Ohio, 
 
         15   right? 
 
         16          A.   So I'm not -- the legal structure it's -- 
 
         17   it is an unregulated affiliate so, yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And to your knowledge has DEO transferred 
 
         19   its OVEC obligations to date? 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, asked and 
 
         21   answered. 
 
         22          A.   So we have not transferred. 
 
         23          Q.   And to your knowledge does DEO intend to 
 
         24   do so by December 31, 2014? 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
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          1          A.   You would have to ask somebody that is 
 
          2   working for DE Ohio. 
 
          3          Q.   So you have no understanding of what DE 
 
          4   Ohio is going to do or not do by December 31, 2014; 
 
          5   is that your testimony? 
 
          6               MS. SPILLER:  Objection to form. 
 
          7          A.   Can you restate the question? 
 
          8          Q.   Sure.  Are you telling me that you have 
 
          9   no knowledge of what DEO may or may not do by 
 
         10   December 31, 2014, with regard to the transfer of 
 
         11   assets? 
 
         12          A.   I'm saying I don't know what they are 
 
         13   going to do. 
 
         14          Q.   And would you be privy to what DEO 
 
         15   decides to do given that you are on the board of OVEC 
 
         16   on behalf of DEO? 
 
         17          A.   I think ultimately -- ultimately that 
 
         18   that would come before the board because it's -- if 
 
         19   it entailed an assignment or dealt with the 
 
         20   succession or clause of the ICPA, then I would. 
 
         21          Q.   But you would not know -- you would not 
 
         22   be involved in the internal DEO discussions prior to 
 
         23   it going to the board as being a member representing 
 
         24   DEO on the board? 
 
         25          A.   Correct. 
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          1          Q.   You discussed a little bit today about 
 
          2   Bryan Dougherty.  Is that how you? 
 
          3          A.   Dougherty is how I pronounce it. 
 
          4          Q.   Could you tell me what working 
 
          5   relationship you have with him?  When do you work 
 
          6   with him or when do you not work with him?  I know 
 
          7   you stated you are not sure what department he is 
 
          8   exactly in. 
 
          9          A.   So Bryan actually works up through the 
 
         10   finance organization.  He doesn't work for me, but he 
 
         11   is assigned to the business Midwest Commercial 
 
         12   Generation.  So he does the financial reporting up 
 
         13   through the controller's organization. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  So he -- even though he is an 
 
         15   employer of the what you're calling business 
 
         16   services, I believe shared services, he actually is 
 
         17   assigned to the unregulated affiliate company. 
 
         18          A.   Yeah.  Sure. 
 
         19          Q.   And did he in the past work directly for 
 
         20   or with you? 
 
         21          A.   No. 
 
         22          Q.   So in your capacity of -- I'm sorry.  Are 
 
         23   you president of the commercial side? 
 
         24          A.   I am -- yeah. 
 
         25          Q.   Still? 
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          1          A.   Still. 
 
          2          Q.   Okay.  As the president, you work with 
 
          3   him with regard to finances of the unregulated 
 
          4   affiliate? 
 
          5          A.   So I actually work with Sarah Lawler more 
 
          6   than I work with Bryan himself.  Bryan works for 
 
          7   Sarah.  So most of my interaction is with Sarah but 
 
          8   I -- but I -- 
 
          9          Q.   Is Sarah in the finance department of the 
 
         10   business services? 
 
         11          A.   Yes, yes. 
 
         12          Q.   Earlier today you had a discussion of 
 
         13   forecasting, and you called Duke's forecasting 
 
         14   modeling Duke fundamental curve; is that a fair 
 
         15   characterization? 
 
         16          A.   Yes. 
 
         17          Q.   Okay.  And in that Duke fundamental 
 
         18   curve, when you say Duke, is this a fundamental curve 
 
         19   for all Duke entities?  Is it a fundamental curve by 
 
         20   state?  Can you explain that a little further? 
 
         21          A.   So the fundamental curve is -- that 
 
         22   question was asked too, was there a different 
 
         23   fundamental curve for each of the utilities.  And so 
 
         24   to the degree they are in a different market, then 
 
         25   they would have a different curve, all right?  But 
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          1   the curves are internally consistent so it's -- 
 
          2   that's why it's a Duke fundamental curve. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  So that meaning that it would be 
 
          4   for all of Duke's PJM entities; is that fair? 
 
          5          A.   Yeah.  So if there were assets that 
 
          6   were -- so there were assets -- in PJM any asset that 
 
          7   was in PJM that was under the Duke umbrella would use 
 
          8   the same fundamental curve. 
 
          9          Q.   And just to take it one step further, if 
 
         10   we could, you do not in any way do one on a 
 
         11   state-by-state basis? 
 
         12          A.   So the curves don't make sense by state. 
 
         13   They make sense by location of the commodity. 
 
         14          Q.   And that statement would be true even if 
 
         15   it's a regulated state versus an unregulated state? 
 
         16          A.   Yes. 
 
         17          Q.   Now, I think you've said the word today 
 
         18   executive committee a couple of times, and then I 
 
         19   think I've also heard you say executive board.  Just 
 
         20   to be clear is there a distinction, or are you using 
 
         21   those interchangeably? 
 
         22          A.   So -- 
 
         23          Q.   With regard to OVEC, sorry. 
 
         24          A.   Right.  So there is an executive 
 
         25   committee inside of OVEC's board. 
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          1          Q.   Okay. 
 
          2          A.   And so we have to go back to the 
 
          3   questions, but I was probably using them 
 
          4   interchangeably because I don't think there was any 
 
          5   question specific to the executive committee of the 
 
          6   board. 
 
          7          Q.   Okay.  So to be on the executive 
 
          8   committee, you would also have to be on the board of 
 
          9   OVEC. 
 
         10          A.   Correct. 
 
         11          Q.   So you are on the board of OVEC, and you 
 
         12   are part of this subcommittee called executive 
 
         13   committee. 
 
         14          A.   Yes. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  Who -- which other entities are on 
 
         16   the executive committee with you? 
 
         17          A.   So that would be a better question for 
 
         18   either Bryan Chiseling or John Brodt.  I could 
 
         19   speculate but there's a list of them. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  And it would be the owners of the 
 
         21   OVEC entitlement similar to Duke; is that correct? 
 
         22          A.   So there's nobody on the board that's not 
 
         23   an owner and there is nobody on the executive 
 
         24   committee that's not a board member. 
 
         25               MS. BOJKO:  I think my remaining 
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          1   questions are actually confidential.  I would request 
 
          2   of you, Ms. Spiller, at this time there was some 
 
          3   discussion with Mr. Whitlock about OEG-DR-1-001 which 
 
          4   was a confidential OVEC analysis, and I would request 
 
          5   that any supplemental versions of that or subsequent 
 
          6   versions of that be provided under the supplemental 
 
          7   discovery obligation that you have. 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  You are asking me a new 
 
          9   question now, right?  Are you asking me the question? 
 
         10               MS. BOJKO:  No.  I'm saying that 
 
         11   Mr. Whitlock referenced the likelihood of updated 
 
         12   documents, and I'm saying that I would request that 
 
         13   that be supplemented per discovery.  If you -- you 
 
         14   were asked -- I believe that one question was what 
 
         15   are the OVEC analyses and if there are additional 
 
         16   analyses that have been produced since you have 
 
         17   responded to that question, I would ask that we 
 
         18   receive that -- those analyses. 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  I think that's a new 
 
         20   question because the answer when we gave it at the 
 
         21   time was correct. 
 
         22               MR. OLIKER:  Supplement -- 
 
         23               MS. BOJKO:  I am saying if there are 
 
         24   additional ones -- and I don't have the question in 
 
         25   front of me.  Does someone have the question in 
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          1   front, the OEG question? 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  No, I know what the 
 
          3   question is.  I think my point is the Administrative 
 
          4   Code spells out the circumstances when I'm to 
 
          5   supplement.  I don't think a request for updated 
 
          6   information is within those particular provisions 
 
          7   because the answer as he gave it to you was correct 
 
          8   when he gave it, so I'm interpreting your request as 
 
          9   a new one. 
 
         10               MS. BOJKO:  Okay.  You can interpret all 
 
         11   you want.  I think if the question is written to 
 
         12   provide all analyses, just as you've asked us to 
 
         13   supplement our discovery, I think it falls under that 
 
         14   supplemental, but if you need me to put it in 
 
         15   additional writing or writing, we can do that. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Well, we asked you to 
 
         17   supplement because we thought your response may not 
 
         18   have been correct when given. 
 
         19               MS. BOJKO:  And it was correct when 
 
         20   given. 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  I think that's -- we can 
 
         22   debate that interpretation later, Kim. 
 
         23               MS. BOJKO:  I mean, if you want to 
 
         24   consider it a new request, then you can consider it. 
 
         25   I think it falls under the supplemental language of 
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          1   the rules but.  There's no timeframe.  It says all 
 
          2   forecasts or analyses. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  As of the date the question 
 
          4   was answered. 
 
          5               MS. BOJKO:  So all my other questions are 
 
          6   in the confidential portion. 
 
          7               MS. SPILLER:  Okay. 
 
          8               Joe. 
 
          9               MR. OLIKER:  My turn. 
 
         10                           - - - 
 
         11                     CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
         12   By Mr. Oliker: 
 
         13          Q.   Good afternoon, Mr. Whitlock. 
 
         14          A.   Good afternoon. 
 
         15          Q.   My name is Joe Oliker, and I represent 
 
         16   IGS Energy.  I just have a few.  We are going to 
 
         17   start relatively high level, more kind of questions 
 
         18   about your experience in markets.  Initially do you 
 
         19   have a definition of what a subsidy would be, energy 
 
         20   markets?  What would come to mind?  This is an open 
 
         21   ended question.  Give me whatever answer you can 
 
         22   think of. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         24   form and relevance.  Go ahead. 
 
         25          A.   What's a subsidy?  Geez, I don't know. 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



 
 
 
 
                                                               115 
          1   Can I use Google? 
 
          2          Q.   Just if you don't know, you don't know. 
 
          3   Whatever you can think of. 
 
          4          A.   Subsidy would be a benefit, a gift, I 
 
          5   don't know. 
 
          6          Q.   So just take that a step further, it's a 
 
          7   form of payment or benefit that cannot be obtained in 
 
          8   the market.  Is that another definition potentially? 
 
          9          A.   So benefit, gift, sure. 
 
         10          Q.   Okay.  And would you agree -- let's take 
 
         11   a step back. 
 
         12          A.   It could actually be not a benefit.  We 
 
         13   could have a subsidy that was negative in a way. 
 
         14          Q.   Could but thank you for that 
 
         15   clarification.  Now, you have a lot of experience 
 
         16   with energy markets, right?  That's sort of the 
 
         17   profile of your job is you run the Midwest Generation 
 
         18   for Duke. 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   So you are familiar with the markets, and 
 
         21   you evaluate markets for Duke, correct? 
 
         22          A.   I don't know what you mean by evaluate 
 
         23   markets but.  What's the word "evaluate" mean? 
 
         24          Q.   You analyze markets for Duke; is that 
 
         25   correct? 
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          1          A.   I think I pay attention to markets for 
 
          2   Duke, that's for sure. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  And do you -- are you involved in 
 
          4   investment divisions for generating assets for Duke? 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          6   relevance.  What Duke are we referring to? 
 
          7          Q.   I am referring to all of Duke.  It can be 
 
          8   Duke North Carolina.  It can be Duke Ohio.  It could 
 
          9   be Duke Indiana.  This is just a background question. 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  Whether or not he is 
 
         11   involved in generating -- generating asset decisions 
 
         12   in respect to Duke Energy Carolinas?  I am just 
 
         13   trying to understand the question. 
 
         14          Q.   Let's start with all of the various 
 
         15   utilities that Duke owns.  Are you involved in 
 
         16   investment divisions in each of Duke's service 
 
         17   territories? 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  Objection to the relevance. 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  Now, would you agree that 
 
         21   subsidies may have the potential to distort markets? 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
         23          A.   I think they could. 
 
         24          Q.   And -- 
 
         25               MS. SPILLER:  I'm sorry.  Who just 
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          1   joined? 
 
          2               MS. MOONEY:  Colleen Mooney, sorry. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
          4          Q.   Would you agree that making an investment 
 
          5   decision for generating assets an important 
 
          6   consideration is whether other market participants 
 
          7   are receiving subsidies? 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
          9          A.   Could you say the question again? 
 
         10          Q.   Would you agree when you are making 
 
         11   decisions regarding investment and generating assets, 
 
         12   whether or not other market participants are 
 
         13   receiving subsidies is an important consideration? 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  Same objection. 
 
         15          A.   I'm not sure. 
 
         16          Q.   And if you don't know the answer, that's 
 
         17   fine. 
 
         18          A.   I just said I'm not sure. 
 
         19          Q.   Okay.  Now, are you familiar with the 
 
         20   operation of the PJM interconnection? 
 
         21          A.   I am. 
 
         22          Q.   Would you agree that Duke's transmission 
 
         23   assets are under the control of PJM? 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  Can I get a clarification 
 
         25   on Duke?  Is this every Duke? 
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          1          Q.   Would you agree that Duke Energy Ohio's 
 
          2   transmission assets are under the control of PJM? 
 
          3          A.   Yes. 
 
          4          Q.   And just to clarify this, if I just say 
 
          5   Duke for the purposes of this deposition, I mean Duke 
 
          6   Energy Ohio, and I will try to clarify when speaking 
 
          7   of another entity. 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  That's helpful because Duke 
 
          9   earlier was the familial Duke. 
 
         10          Q.   Now, would you agree that Duke Energy 
 
         11   Ohio Generating assets are under the control of the 
 
         12   PJM interconnection with respect to dispatch? 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  Duke Energy Ohio generating 
 
         14   assets. 
 
         15               MR. OLIKER:  That's correct. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Okay.  I am going to object 
 
         17   to relevance while the witness is contemplating. 
 
         18          Q.   I didn't think this one was 
 
         19   controversial. 
 
         20          A.   I am playing it through my head.  So Duke 
 
         21   Energy transferred a bunch of assets out of Duke so 
 
         22   those are not Duke Energy Ohio assets. 
 
         23          Q.   Maybe we can clarify. 
 
         24          A.   Let me tell you what -- you can clarify. 
 
         25   Go ahead. 
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          1          Q.   You go ahead and I will try to drill it 
 
          2   down. 
 
          3          A.   You go. 
 
          4          Q.   No, you go. 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  If you don't understand the 
 
          6   question. 
 
          7          A.   Go ahead and ask the question again. 
 
          8          Q.   Maybe I can -- 
 
          9          A.   It was supposed to be easy because I was 
 
         10   going to make it complicated. 
 
         11          Q.   Let's just focus on OVEC. 
 
         12          A.   Yeah. 
 
         13          Q.   OVEC currently dispatches into PJM, 
 
         14   correct? 
 
         15          A.   Yes. 
 
         16          Q.   Now, OVEC doesn't get to run unless PJM 
 
         17   tells OVEC to run, correct? 
 
         18          A.   That's not true. 
 
         19          Q.   Can you explain why that's not true? 
 
         20          A.   So OVEC could run.  PJM said it didn't 
 
         21   run.  OVEC could offer its generation and be a price 
 
         22   taker -- 
 
         23          Q.   Okay. 
 
         24          A.   -- without PJM.  PJM could tell them you 
 
         25   can't run, but OVEC could say I want to run even if 
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          1   PJM says it's not economic.  They could make the 
 
          2   decision to run. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  Generally speaking in PJM if you 
 
          4   are a generating asset, you only dispatch when PJM 
 
          5   tells you to run. 
 
          6          A.   So I hate the word "generally," right?  I 
 
          7   mean, there are provisions in PJM tariffs that allow 
 
          8   you to run.  You can self-schedule the generation and 
 
          9   that's inside PJM's tariff so that's my struggle. 
 
         10          Q.   Okay.  So if you don't self-schedule and 
 
         11   you aren't a price taker, you can't run unless PJM 
 
         12   dispatches you; is that correct? 
 
         13          A.   Now, you are asking me for the 
 
         14   exclusions, right?  So those are the two that I am 
 
         15   aware of.  I am not aware of any other reason that 
 
         16   you would -- that are under PJM's tariff that you 
 
         17   could run without PJM saying it was okay.  But, 
 
         18   again, their tariff is probably a thousand pages. 
 
         19          Q.   Okay.  Now, let's get to assuming OVEC 
 
         20   doesn't run.  None of Duke Energy Ohio which you said 
 
         21   does not have generation assets any more, none of 
 
         22   those assets are dispatched, isn't it true that PJM 
 
         23   will just pick other generating assets to serve the 
 
         24   load in Duke Energy Ohio's service territory? 
 
         25          A.   Say the question again. 
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          1          Q.   This discussion is about economic 
 
          2   dispatch. 
 
          3          A.   Okay. 
 
          4          Q.   PJM will take the least cost generating 
 
          5   assets to run, correct? 
 
          6          A.   Subject to reliability constraints I 
 
          7   would say yes. 
 
          8          Q.   Okay.  And if Duke Energy Ohio or OVEC, 
 
          9   none of the assets formerly owned by Duke, OVEC, if 
 
         10   that doesn't run, PJM will just pick different 
 
         11   generating assets, and it will serve the load in 
 
         12   Duke's territory; isn't that correct? 
 
         13               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to 
 
         14   relevance. 
 
         15          A.   I think that's true. 
 
         16          Q.   Okay.  Now, let me ask another question 
 
         17   about that.  OVEC consists of Clifty Creek and Kyger 
 
         18   Creek, correct? 
 
         19          A.   Correct. 
 
         20          Q.   Now, Kyger Creek is in Ohio, right? 
 
         21          A.   Correct. 
 
         22          Q.   Clifty Creek is in Indiana, correct? 
 
         23          A.   Correct. 
 
         24          Q.   Now, isn't it true Indiana is located in 
 
         25   MISO? 
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          1          A.   Yes. 
 
          2          Q.   Are you aware, is Clifty Creek -- 
 
          3          A.   I think that's true, man.  So, again, I 
 
          4   don't think about PJM by state, but I think that's 
 
          5   true. 
 
          6          Q.   Is Clifty Creek pseudo tied to PJM? 
 
          7          A.   I believe so. 
 
          8          Q.   Does Clifty Creek have a firm 
 
          9   transmission path to PJM? 
 
         10          A.   I don't know.  I think -- I don't know. 
 
         11          Q.   Okay.  And for the record could you 
 
         12   please explain what it is to pseudo tie a generating 
 
         13   asset to a regional transmission operator. 
 
         14          A.   So I can give you a layman's definition. 
 
         15   It's probably not the definition what a pseudo tie 
 
         16   is, but it essentially takes an electrical gen -- 
 
         17   generator that's not connected electrically and makes 
 
         18   it look like it's connected electrically to that RTO. 
 
         19          Q.   Okay.  So although Clifty Creek is not 
 
         20   necessarily physically located in PJM, it is allowed 
 
         21   to bid into the PJM reliability pricing model 
 
         22   capacity auction, correct? 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   Are you aware of the rules and 
 
         25   circumstances that allow that to occur, if you know? 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  Object to the relevance. 
 
          2               Go ahead. 
 
          3          A.   We should -- is there a specific 
 
          4   provision of the tariff? 
 
          5          Q.   I was hoping you could tell me. 
 
          6          A.   Yeah.  We could get PJM's tariff and look 
 
          7   at -- it's spelled out in PJM's tariff what's 
 
          8   required to participate in. 
 
          9          Q.   Do you know if it's allowed to 
 
         10   participate as an external resource or as an internal 
 
         11   resource? 
 
         12          A.   I don't.  I believe it's an external 
 
         13   resource, but I don't know.  I shouldn't speculate. 
 
         14          Q.   Yeah, if you know.  Thank you.  Now, 
 
         15   talking about the Duke ownership structure of OVEC, 
 
         16   Duke owns stock in OVEC; isn't that correct? 
 
         17          A.   Yes. 
 
         18          Q.   And that's Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         19          A.   Yes. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true that Duke Energy 
 
         21   Ohio previously owned coal generating assets with DPL 
 
         22   and AEP? 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
         24          A.   Yes. 
 
         25          Q.   Are you aware how the ownership of those 
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          1   generating assets was structured? 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance.  Are 
 
          3   we talking -- you want to question about every asset 
 
          4   that was co-owned? 
 
          5          Q.   Let's -- in general would you agree that 
 
          6   it was also the stock ownership structure of the CONE 
 
          7   generating units? 
 
          8          A.   I don't know, Joe. 
 
          9          Q.   If you don't know, that's fine.  And I 
 
         10   apologize if this came up earlier and I missed it, 
 
         11   but Duke has -- Duke Energy Ohio has agreed to sell 
 
         12   its generating assets to Dynegy, correct? 
 
         13          A.   No, no. 
 
         14          Q.   No?  Could you explain how that's 
 
         15   incorrect? 
 
         16          A.   Duke Energy Ohio is not selling its 
 
         17   generating assets to Dynegy. 
 
         18          Q.   Has Duke agreed to sell its generating 
 
         19   assets? 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  Is this -- 
 
         21          A.   Which Duke? 
 
         22          Q.   Duke Energy Ohio. 
 
         23          A.   I'm not aware of Duke Energy Ohio making 
 
         24   a decision to sell its assets. 
 
         25          Q.   Has Duke Energy North America agreed to 
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          1   sell any of its generating assets? 
 
          2          A.   I don't know. 
 
          3          Q.   Which is the gas units.  Okay.  Moving to 
 
          4   the history of OVEC just a little bit, are you 
 
          5   familiar with OVEC's long history? 
 
          6          A.   The long history probably not.  Familiar 
 
          7   would be a -- let's figure out what familiar means. 
 
          8          Q.   Was -- are you aware whether OVEC was 
 
          9   ever in Duke Energy Ohio's rate base? 
 
         10          A.   I don't believe that OVEC was ever in 
 
         11   Duke Energy Ohio's rate base. 
 
         12          Q.   Okay.  And you would agree though that 
 
         13   OVEC previously had a contract with the Department of 
 
         14   Energy and that contract terminated in 2003. 
 
         15          A.   So subject to check on the dates, I think 
 
         16   that's true, and I still believe that there is some 
 
         17   energy that's still supplied to the Department of 
 
         18   Energy. 
 
         19          Q.   Okay.  But would you agree that the 
 
         20   Department of Energy notified Duke of that 
 
         21   termination in 2000?  If you know. 
 
         22          A.   So I am not sure they notified Duke.  I 
 
         23   think they probably notified OVEC. 
 
         24          Q.   Right.  Okay.  Thank you for that 
 
         25   clarification.  But you would agree after that 
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          1   notification in 2002, OVEC started investing in 
 
          2   substantial environmental controls? 
 
          3          A.   To go back you had asked me about -- the 
 
          4   previous question was about 2003; and, now, we are 
 
          5   after that in 2002 doesn't work. 
 
          6          Q.   My question was after being notified -- 
 
          7          A.   In 2003, you said 2003 was when we were 
 
          8   notified and I said subject to check and you said 
 
          9   after that in 2002. 
 
         10          Q.   I thought I said 2000, so maybe we'll 
 
         11   back up.  I may have misstated that if I said 2003. 
 
         12   Let's lay that one more time.  Would you agree in 
 
         13   2000 the Department of Energy notified Duke -- or I 
 
         14   apologize.  In 2000 the Department of Energy notified 
 
         15   OVEC that it would cancel the contract with OVEC in 
 
         16   2003; isn't that correct? 
 
         17          A.   Again, subject to check.  That 
 
         18   notification is going to be in OVEC's documents, 
 
         19   right. 
 
         20          Q.   But would you also agree that after 
 
         21   receiving notification from the Department of Energy, 
 
         22   OVEC started investing in environmental controls? 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   And OVEC continued to do that in the 
 
         25   2006-2007 time period, invested in additional 
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          1   environmental controls? 
 
          2               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to 
 
          3   relevance. 
 
          4          A.   I think OVEC to this day still makes 
 
          5   investments in environmental controls.  We spent 
 
          6   money on FTDs, SCRs. 
 
          7          Q.   And because the OVEC relationship with 
 
          8   sponsoring companies is a traditional rate base rate 
 
          9   of return contract, those investments have increased 
 
         10   the revenue requirement for OVEC, correct? 
 
         11          A.   Could you restate that?  I'm sorry. 
 
         12               MR. OLIKER:  Could you read the question 
 
         13   back, please. 
 
         14               (Record read.) 
 
         15          A.   So I would tell you that -- I'm not sure 
 
         16   whether it's traditional ratemaking.  The ICPA spells 
 
         17   out in that section we talked about, I think it was 
 
         18   Section 5, how the -- how the components -- how we 
 
         19   are billed for a demand charge and how we are billed 
 
         20   for an energy charge, and I refer you to that 
 
         21   document. 
 
         22          Q.   But you would agree that the 
 
         23   environmental control investments has an impact on 
 
         24   the price the sponsoring companies pay through the 
 
         25   participation power agreement. 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object.  Go 
 
          2   ahead. 
 
          3          A.   Again, you can read the ICPA; and the 
 
          4   ICPA demand charge component, there are environmental 
 
          5   charges that are embedded in that. 
 
          6          Q.   Okay.  I am trying to see what's 
 
          7   confidential and what's not.  Now, if we could just 
 
          8   refer back to the ICPA for a minute, that contract. 
 
          9   If -- and I am just asking for your lay 
 
         10   understanding.  I am not asking for a legal opinion. 
 
         11   Would you agree that there's two basic options?  Duke 
 
         12   can request permission from the other sponsoring 
 
         13   companies, or it can submit an offer to those 
 
         14   companies which gives them a right of first refusal. 
 
         15          A.   Is there a section of the -- let's just 
 
         16   look at the agreement, right, for the sections and 
 
         17   then we'll read it. 
 
         18          Q.   I am just trying to understand if that is 
 
         19   the way you view the document. 
 
         20          A.   What section? 
 
         21          Q.   I believe it was 1.181 and 2 and 3. 
 
         22          A.   9.181 or 1.181? 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  9.181. 
 
         24          Q.   Yeah, 9.181.  I have got it somewhere in 
 
         25   here.  Would you agree there's two high level 
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          1   options? 
 
          2          A.   Which section do you want me to read? 
 
          3          Q.   I don't necessarily need to read it.  I 
 
          4   am saying -- 
 
          5          A.   I would like to read it. 
 
          6          Q.   Okay.  9.181 and 9.182. 
 
          7          A.   Okay.  All right. 
 
          8          Q.   And 9.183. 
 
          9          A.   So what's the question? 
 
         10          Q.   From a high level do you agree that Duke 
 
         11   can either ask for permission from all of the 
 
         12   companies to transfer its interest in OVEC or it can 
 
         13   give a right of first refusal to the other companies? 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         15   relevance and also to the fact that the document 
 
         16   speaks for itself.  To the extent you are asking for 
 
         17   a legal opinion, Mr. Whitlock is not an attorney. 
 
         18          Q.   And if you know.  If you don't know, 
 
         19   that's fine. 
 
         20          A.   I would just let the document speak to 
 
         21   itself, right? 
 
         22          Q.   If you don't know the answer, that's 
 
         23   fine.  Now, just some -- strike that. 
 
         24               Would you agree that the ICPA is a FERC 
 
         25   jurisdictional document that deals with wholesale 
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          1   transactions? 
 
          2          A.   Yes. 
 
          3          Q.   And do you have experience dealing with 
 
          4   wholesale power transactions, Mr. Whitlock? 
 
          5          A.   Yes. 
 
          6          Q.   Now, this is just a hypothetical but 
 
          7   assuming Duke Energy Ohio -- strike that. 
 
          8               The OVEC contract is effectively a take 
 
          9   or pay contract; would you agree with that, that 
 
         10   characterization?  You take power or you pay? 
 
         11          A.   I think there's elements of it that are 
 
         12   take or pay and then elements that are not. 
 
         13          Q.   Okay.  Either way the amount of money 
 
         14   that OVEC wants to collect from Duke Energy Ohio, 
 
         15   OVEC gets their money, right? 
 
         16               THE WITNESS:  Could you read the question 
 
         17   back to me. 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         19   form. 
 
         20               (Record read.) 
 
         21          A.   No.  OVEC is constrained by the 
 
         22   agreement, right?  So they can't just collect 
 
         23   whatever money they want from me or any of the 
 
         24   participants, right?  I mean, it's prescribed what 
 
         25   they can collect and what they can't collect. 
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          1          Q.   Okay. 
 
          2          A.   It's not a wish -- it's not determined by 
 
          3   their will to collect. 
 
          4          Q.   I think you actually led to my next 
 
          5   question.  This agreement, the OVEC agreement, the 
 
          6   ICPA, is binding on the sponsoring companies so 
 
          7   according to this FERC jurisdictional document they 
 
          8   have to pay pursuant to its terms no matter what may 
 
          9   happen regarding energy markets or the Public 
 
         10   Utilities Commission of Ohio decisions regarding what 
 
         11   they can collect from their customers. 
 
         12          A.   I think that's true regardless of whether 
 
         13   it was FERC jurisdictional or not.  It's a contract 
 
         14   that spells out terms and conditions of paying money. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  So let me take it one step 
 
         16   further.  This is just a hypothetical. 
 
         17          A.   Yeah.  It's not hypothetical because you 
 
         18   are talking about the ICPA. 
 
         19          Q.   It's a hypothetical for any FERC 
 
         20   jurisdictional energy contract. 
 
         21          A.   Okay. 
 
         22          Q.   Assuming Duke Energy Ohio has a contract 
 
         23   with another company and they have some rate 
 
         24   mechanism from the Ohio Commission to collect the 
 
         25   costs from that contract, but then because the 
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          1   Commission has jurisdiction over that mechanism they 
 
          2   determine a certain amount of those costs should be 
 
          3   disallowed.  Would you agree that that loss would be 
 
          4   recorded as Duke Energy Ohio, and Duke Energy Ohio 
 
          5   would still have to pay in accordance with the 
 
          6   wholesale contract terms? 
 
          7          A.   So can we take it in pieces? 
 
          8          Q.   Sure. 
 
          9          A.   So if Duke Energy -- if Duke -- any 
 
         10   entity inside of Duke has a contract, they are 
 
         11   going -- Duke is going to abide by the terms of the 
 
         12   contract -- 
 
         13          Q.   Okay. 
 
         14          A.   -- that's No. 1, and then the second 
 
         15   question is if I had -- if those were deemed 
 
         16   imprudent -- or what was the word that you used? 
 
         17          Q.   Disallowance. 
 
         18          A.   Disallowed, what would be -- what's the 
 
         19   question? 
 
         20          Q.   If those costs were disallowed from 
 
         21   collection from ratepayers, then Duke Energy Ohio 
 
         22   would not be able to flow that disallowance upstream 
 
         23   to the other company that's in the other side of the 
 
         24   transaction.  They would still have to pay the party 
 
         25   on the other side of the wholesale contract. 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, relevance. 
 
          2          A.   Upstream to what? 
 
          3          Q.   I am trying to help you understand this, 
 
          4   the hypothetical.  If there's a disallowance at the 
 
          5   Public Utilities' level -- 
 
          6          A.   Yes. 
 
          7          Q.   -- it doesn't affect Duke's obligation to 
 
          8   pay the other party that's involved with the 
 
          9   wholesale contract; isn't that correct? 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  I don't know that there are 
 
         11   enough facts to answer this hypothetical.  You are 
 
         12   asking him to make a whole lot of assumptions as to 
 
         13   what that contract says. 
 
         14          Q.   Let's assume it's the ICPA. 
 
         15          A.   Okay.  Let's assume it's the ICPA.  So I 
 
         16   have an obligation to pay under the ICPA; I am going 
 
         17   to pay that money.  And then what's the question? 
 
         18          Q.   Okay.  You have an obligation to pay 
 
         19   under the ICPA. 
 
         20          A.   Correct. 
 
         21          Q.   And then you sell all the revenue from 
 
         22   OVEC into the market.  Those revenues are less than 
 
         23   the amount you have to pay to OVEC. 
 
         24               MS. SPILLER:  Is this part of the 
 
         25   hypothetical? 
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          1               MR. OLIKER:  It's part of the 
 
          2   hypothetical. 
 
          3          A.   Wait.  I'm confused.  So, now, we are 
 
          4   talking about the ICPA.  Okay.  We are saying it's 
 
          5   not a hypothetical. 
 
          6          Q.   It's a hypothetical, but we are going to 
 
          7   use the ICPA to add additional facts to it. 
 
          8          A.   Okay. 
 
          9          Q.   Let's assume this wholesale contract is 
 
         10   the ICPA so Duke has an obligation to pay OVEC.  But 
 
         11   then there's a collection mechanism for any 
 
         12   difference between the amount Duke has to pay to OVEC 
 
         13   and the amount of market-based revenues that they 
 
         14   receive.  But then assume -- assume that, say, Duke 
 
         15   loses $10 million in the market. 
 
         16               But then assume the Commission decides, 
 
         17   well, we thought what you were doing was imprudent. 
 
         18   That number is actually $20 million.  So then there 
 
         19   is $10 million that Duke's allowed to collect from 
 
         20   ratepayers and $10 million that they have to eat. 
 
         21   They don't get to collect that money from customers, 
 
         22   but they record a lose at the distribution utility; 
 
         23   isn't that correct?  They still have to pay all of 
 
         24   that extra $20 million to OVEC.  I am trying to add 
 
         25   as many facts for you as possible. 
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          1          A.   I hate the hypothetical fact where you're 
 
          2   blending the ICPA and then a hypothetical situation 
 
          3   and then it's more complicated that you use $10 
 
          4   million in both examples, right, where I was allowed 
 
          5   to collect 10 million and then not another 10 
 
          6   million.  So we're paying -- Duke Energy Ohio is 
 
          7   going to pay under the ICPA contract. 
 
          8          Q.   Okay. 
 
          9          A.   That's No. 1.  So can you ask a question 
 
         10   that goes to the second piece that you wanted? 
 
         11          Q.   Sure.  Let's use easier numbers then. 
 
         12          A.   All right. 
 
         13          Q.   Assume -- assume that embedded in the 
 
         14   amount that Duke has to pay under the ICPA is $10 
 
         15   million that the Ohio Commission doesn't think Duke 
 
         16   should have paid.  Then -- and then Duke, they still 
 
         17   have to pay the ICPA for the entire 10 million no 
 
         18   matter what, right?  So assuming Duke can collect all 
 
         19   of its costs from the ICPA from customers but the 
 
         20   Commission disallows some of those costs, Duke still 
 
         21   has to pay OVEC, right? 
 
         22          A.   So I think -- I think that's answered in 
 
         23   my first -- the answer I gave you in the first 
 
         24   question, that we are going to pay what we are 
 
         25   obligated under the ICPA. 
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          1          Q.   Okay.  So if -- 
 
          2          A.   I feels like I answered that. 
 
          3          Q.   So then the second question if you have 
 
          4   to pay but you have a loss, the loss is recorded at 
 
          5   the distribution utility. 
 
          6          A.   And the loss is the difference between 
 
          7   what I paid and what the Commission allows me to 
 
          8   collect? 
 
          9          Q.   That's correct. 
 
         10          A.   I guess it would depend on what the -- so 
 
         11   the hypothetical is the Commission says you can't 
 
         12   collect it.  Then I would be -- I am paying the 
 
         13   money.  It feels like that's -- it feels like that's 
 
         14   answering the first question. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  So -- so here's the summary 
 
         16   question which makes all of this much easier, the 
 
         17   fact that the Ohio Commission would have no control 
 
         18   over the amount of money Duke Energy Ohio pays to 
 
         19   OVEC. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  Under the ICPA. 
 
         21          Q.   For the ICPA. 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  Are there any hypothetical 
 
         23   facts here? 
 
         24               MR. OLIKER:  No. 
 
         25          A.   I don't think Duke Energy -- I don't 
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          1   think the PUCO has any say in what Duke Energy Ohio 
 
          2   pays to OVEC. 
 
          3          Q.   Thank you.  I should have asked that 
 
          4   first. 
 
          5          A.   That would have been a lot easier.  There 
 
          6   were some great examples in there hypothetically, 
 
          7   great examples. 
 
          8          Q.   Okay.  Now, moving on from that let's -- 
 
          9   actually let's do one more example.  One more 
 
         10   example.  Okay.  Let's assume OVEC decides to install 
 
         11   an IGCC or a carbon captured sequestration facility, 
 
         12   and it costs $5 million.  Ohio Commission does not 
 
         13   agree with that decision.  Would you agree that Duke 
 
         14   Energy Ohio would still have to pay? 
 
         15          A.   So I'm not sure that the members would 
 
         16   agree to investing that money. 
 
         17          Q.   Assuming they were ambitious. 
 
         18          A.   Or crazy? 
 
         19          Q.   Or crazy. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  Do you have enough assumed 
 
         21   facts to even? 
 
         22               THE WITNESS:  I don't know. 
 
         23          A.   Assume that it was approved as the 
 
         24   capital budget? 
 
         25          Q.   Absolutely. 
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          1          A.   I would have to look at the rules, man, 
 
          2   about $5 billion.  I don't think -- I don't think 
 
          3   they could spend 5 -- that feels like that would 
 
          4   require unanimity among the members not a majority, 
 
          5   but I would have to look at what the -- 
 
          6          Q.   Assume there is -- assume there is 
 
          7   unanimity the whole way.  Everybody wants to build 
 
          8   this.  They are excited to build the CCS facilities. 
 
          9          A.   I am assuming it makes economic sense. 
 
         10          Q.   Okay.  And I understand that but take all 
 
         11   those other facts off the table but if they do -- 
 
         12          A.   What other facts off the table? 
 
         13          Q.   If they build a $5 billion facility -- 
 
         14          A.   And it makes sense to build the $5 
 
         15   billion dollar -- 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  Don't think about it making 
 
         17   sense. 
 
         18          Q.   It's irrelevant for purposes of this 
 
         19   hypothetical.  Say they think it makes sense but the 
 
         20   Ohio Commission doesn't and then there is a 
 
         21   disallowance in Ohio at the distribution level.  The 
 
         22   distribution utility still has to pay though, right? 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  What's the disallowance for 
 
         24   and under what mechanism? 
 
         25          A.   Joe, that feels like the same question 
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          1   you asked me before, right? 
 
          2          Q.   It is pretty much.  It's just more money. 
 
          3          A.   So why are we asking it again? 
 
          4          Q.   I am just trying to make sure it's still 
 
          5   the same. 
 
          6          A.   I think I was pretty clear in the first 
 
          7   answer.  The hypothetical to me, $5 billion, the 
 
          8   terms of the ICPA are spelled out in the ICPA.  We 
 
          9   have an obligation to pay though money because we are 
 
         10   a signator of the ICPA.  If the ICPA can be amended 
 
         11   and changed as you go through time, we are going to 
 
         12   pay that money. 
 
         13          Q.   Okay.  Moving to a different subject, you 
 
         14   would agree that Clifty Creek and Kyger Creek are 
 
         15   both coal facilities, right? 
 
         16          A.   I would. 
 
         17          Q.   And you're familiar with the fact that 
 
         18   the EPA recently issued emission rules for -- 
 
         19   proposed emission rules for existing power plants. 
 
         20          A.   I am. 
 
         21          Q.   And would you agree that those rules 
 
         22   could increase the production costs for both coal 
 
         23   power plants? 
 
         24          A.   So I haven't read the rules in detail, 
 
         25   and I think it's yet to be determined what the impact 
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          1   is about costs and/or benefits as it relates to a 
 
          2   coal facility like Kyger or Clifty. 
 
          3          Q.   In general would you agree that it will 
 
          4   increase the production costs for coal power plants? 
 
          5          A.   I think it could increase it; but, again, 
 
          6   I don't think cost is the only piece of the 
 
          7   calculation.  I think you have to look at capacity 
 
          8   prices and energy prices, but the cost would go up. 
 
          9          Q.   Okay.  Let's ask another hypothetical. 
 
         10          A.   Oh, boy. 
 
         11          Q.   Much easier. 
 
         12          A.   Sure. 
 
         13          Q.   Okay.  Margin is -- what's your 
 
         14   definition of margin? 
 
         15          A.   Revenue less costs, less marginal costs, 
 
         16   right. 
 
         17          Q.   Okay. 
 
         18          A.   So for me it's energy prices less fuel 
 
         19   and emission allowances typically for a plant. 
 
         20          Q.   Okay.  And the wholesale energy market, 
 
         21   would you agree that CO-2 emission rules could 
 
         22   increase power prices? 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   Wholesale energy.  What's the theory 
 
         25   behind power prices increasing? 
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          1          A.   What would make -- a lot of things could 
 
          2   make power prices go up. 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree it could be 
 
          4   related to an underlying increase in production 
 
          5   costs? 
 
          6          A.   It could. 
 
          7          Q.   And if power prices increases -- increase 
 
          8   but production costs increase, there could be no 
 
          9   additional margin. 
 
         10          A.   Again, so in -- 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Is this another 
 
         12   hypothetical? 
 
         13               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it was hypothetical, 
 
         14   right? 
 
         15          A.   So you could have three circumstances 
 
         16   where costs go up faster than your energy prices go 
 
         17   up.  I think you could have costs go up slower than 
 
         18   energy prices, and I think you could have them go up 
 
         19   where they went up the same.  Those are the three 
 
         20   outcomes.  Maybe there is a third one in some 
 
         21   parallel universe but those are the three I would 
 
         22   think would exist. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay. 
 
         24          A.   And I don't know which one the greenhouse 
 
         25   gas rule for existing generation -- I'm not sure 
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          1   which one will end up being the fact. 
 
          2          Q.   Understood.  And your job in Midwest 
 
          3   Generation, you deal with heat rates a lot, I bet. 
 
          4          A.   I did.  Now, I am trying to just close a 
 
          5   sale. 
 
          6          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that if the output 
 
          7   of OVEC is reduced from current provisions, the heat 
 
          8   rate would likely go down or up, I suppose. 
 
          9          A.   So go ahead again. 
 
         10          Q.   Would you agree output of a unit can be 
 
         11   tied to heat rate? 
 
         12          A.   When you calculate heat rate? 
 
         13          Q.   The heat rates of a unit -- 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  Is everyone still on the 
 
         15   line? 
 
         16               MS. MOONEY:  Colleen Mooney still is. 
 
         17               MS. SPILLER:  We had Columbus drop off. 
 
         18   That was us so we wanted to make sure we were still 
 
         19   connected. 
 
         20               MS. MOONEY:  Yeah, you are still 
 
         21   connected. 
 
         22               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay.  The heat rate, would you agree 
 
         24   that the heat rate is the amount of BTUs it takes to 
 
         25   produce kWh? 
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          1          A.   Are we talking about the specific heat 
 
          2   rate of Kyger and Clifty? 
 
          3          Q.   That's fine.  We can talk about that, 
 
          4   yeah. 
 
          5          A.   Okay. 
 
          6          Q.   Would you agree it's the amount of BTUs 
 
          7   per kilowatt hour? 
 
          8          A.   Absolutely. 
 
          9          Q.   The higher the heat rate the less 
 
         10   efficient the unit. 
 
         11          A.   Absolutely. 
 
         12          Q.   And the less often a unit runs the more 
 
         13   likely its heat rate will go up, all other things 
 
         14   being equal, if you reduce the amount of output. 
 
         15          A.   So are you talking about the average heat 
 
         16   rate or the incremental heat rate? 
 
         17          Q.   Let's talk about both. 
 
         18          A.   Which one do you want to talk about? 
 
         19          Q.   You go -- take them one at a time. 
 
         20          A.   So the incremental heat rate -- so the 
 
         21   average heat rate is a number -- 
 
         22          Q.   Right. 
 
         23          A.   -- that probably -- that doesn't change 
 
         24   over time, right?  The heat rate of the unit -- 
 
         25               THE WITNESS:  Can you read the question 
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          1   back to me?  Let's do that. 
 
          2               (Record read.) 
 
          3          A.   No. 
 
          4          Q.   Why is it not true? 
 
          5          A.   Because the amount of time that a unit 
 
          6   runs does not affect its heat rate. 
 
          7          Q.   Okay.  I am trying to get as many 
 
          8   questions in the public record as I can here.  You're 
 
          9   familiar with the word "unforced capacity." 
 
         10          A.   Yes. 
 
         11          Q.   And you can only bid -- unforced 
 
         12   capacity, what's your definition? 
 
         13          A.   So it's the installed capacity less what 
 
         14   you think the forced outage rate of that unit is 
 
         15   going to be. 
 
         16          Q.   And you can only bid on forced capacity 
 
         17   in the PJM capacity auctions, right? 
 
         18          A.   PJM's capacity market is a UCAP market. 
 
         19          Q.   Right. 
 
         20          A.   I think that's different than your 
 
         21   question. 
 
         22          Q.   I think it's where I was going.  Thank 
 
         23   you. 
 
         24          A.   Okay. 
 
         25          Q.   Okay.  And unforced capacity rates are 
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          1   determined by PJM, right? 
 
          2          A.   So PJM gives you a UCAP, but you can vary 
 
          3   your offer based on PJM's calculation. 
 
          4          Q.   Okay.  So can you clear more capacity 
 
          5   than your UCAP? 
 
          6          A.   So by definition when you clear, you're 
 
          7   clearing UCAP. 
 
          8          Q.   Okay.  That's what I thought.  When a 
 
          9   unit moves -- I am going to save that for 
 
         10   confidential actually.  Let me see if I have anything 
 
         11   else.  Mr. Wathen -- Mr. Whitlock. 
 
         12          A.   I'll take that as a compliment. 
 
         13          Q.   I think it's IEU Deposition Exhibit 5.  I 
 
         14   would like to ask you some questions from "A Message 
 
         15   from the President," maybe just one or two.  Could 
 
         16   you go to "2014 Energy Sales Outlook." 
 
         17          A.   Uh-huh. 
 
         18          Q.   Do you know when this statement was made, 
 
         19   when this paragraph was crafted? 
 
         20          A.   I'm assuming it was after the first 
 
         21   quarter and before -- before -- no later than June 30 
 
         22   of 2014. 
 
         23          Q.   Would you agree that it's been a very 
 
         24   cool summer? 
 
         25          A.   What do you mean by "very cool summer"? 
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          1          Q.   Okay.  Would you agree that temperature 
 
          2   impacts power prices? 
 
          3          A.   Yes. 
 
          4          Q.   Would you agree that this summer has been 
 
          5   cooler than last summer, for example? 
 
          6          A.   So when you say "summer," what do you 
 
          7   mean?  What months do you mean? 
 
          8          Q.   Let's do June through the end of August. 
 
          9          A.   Subject to check, I think June was a 
 
         10   little bit warmer than normal, July less so, and 
 
         11   August about normal.  And I'm talking about cooling 
 
         12   degree days in Cincinnati, but subject to check the 
 
         13   data. 
 
         14          Q.   And try to keep this public, would you 
 
         15   agree that July and August showed lower earnings for 
 
         16   coal-fired power plants than last July and August? 
 
         17               MS. SPILLER:  Are we just speaking 
 
         18   generically? 
 
         19          Q.   General, I don't want to be confidential. 
 
         20               MS. SPILLER:  If you know.  I would 
 
         21   object to the relevance. 
 
         22          A.   In any specific area of the country or? 
 
         23          Q.   How about Ohio? 
 
         24          A.   That's probably not true. 
 
         25          Q.   And is that because of higher natural gas 
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          1   prices? 
 
          2          A.   No. 
 
          3          Q.   If you know.  And, Mr. Whitlock, have you 
 
          4   reviewed OVEC's earnings for July and August of 2014? 
 
          5          A.   I have not. 
 
          6          Q.   Have you reviewed April, May, or June? 
 
          7          A.   I don't think I specifically looked at 
 
          8   OVEC for any one of those months. 
 
          9          Q.   Would you agree that OVEC makes 
 
         10   projections of its earnings for each month? 
 
         11          A.   If they do, I haven't paid attention to 
 
         12   them.  What OVEC thinks their earnings are going to 
 
         13   be?  Yeah. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  That's fair enough.  Looking at 
 
         15   OVEC's projection at 20 -- in the 2014 Energy Sales 
 
         16   Outlook, would you agree that if OVEC's earnings were 
 
         17   lower than projected at the time this statement was 
 
         18   issued, then it's likely that costs of production 
 
         19   would be higher than $55 per megawatt-hour? 
 
         20          A.   Can you say -- 
 
         21               THE WITNESS:  Or can you read the 
 
         22   question back? 
 
         23               (Record read.) 
 
         24               THE WITNESS:  Say the last part again. 
 
         25               (Record read.) 
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          1          A.   So it could be energy prices were lower 
 
          2   or costs were higher? 
 
          3          Q.   Okay.  Let's say it differently.  If 
 
          4   OVEC's output was lower than projected, total kWh, 
 
          5   would you agree that the production costs would be 
 
          6   higher than $55 per megawatt-hour? 
 
          7          A.   I think it's indeterminate. 
 
          8          Q.   Okay.  Why is that? 
 
          9          A.   There's a demand component and an energy 
 
         10   component and the energy component could be lower. 
 
         11          Q.   Okay.  Fair enough.  One last question on 
 
         12   CO-2 emissions. 
 
         13          A.   Okay. 
 
         14          Q.   Would you agree that one of the possible 
 
         15   outcomes of the EPA regulations is that coal-fired 
 
         16   power plants may have to run less than currently 
 
         17   projected? 
 
         18          A.   I think there's a potential for that.  I 
 
         19   think there's potential they run the same and 
 
         20   potential that they run more.  I am not sure which 
 
         21   one, but I think that's one of the outcomes we talked 
 
         22   about. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay.  And if Duke were to determine to 
 
         24   go to the OVEC board, said they wanted to transfer 
 
         25   their interest in OVEC, would you be the person that 
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          1   brought that request to the board? 
 
          2          A.   How about -- yes. 
 
          3               MR. PRITCHARD:  Could I have that 
 
          4   question and answer read back. 
 
          5               THE WITNESS:  That "yes"? 
 
          6               MR. PRITCHARD:  And the question. 
 
          7               THE WITNESS:  Oh. 
 
          8               (Record read.) 
 
          9          Q.   The answer was "yes"? 
 
         10          A.   Yeah.  I mean, I think I'm the board 
 
         11   member, right, so I think I would interface as other 
 
         12   people could come and do it, but I think I would be 
 
         13   the likely person to do it. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  This may really be the last 
 
         15   question. 
 
         16          A.   I don't believe it. 
 
         17          Q.   Five parts.  I'm just kidding. 
 
         18               MS. GRADY:  Hypothetical. 
 
         19               MS. SPILLER:  No. 
 
         20          Q.   Not a hypothetical but it's -- 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  Close? 
 
         22               MS. BOJKO:  Two hypotheticals. 
 
         23          Q.   We talked about the physical location of 
 
         24   I believe it's Clifty Creek.  Now, isn't it possible 
 
         25   that PJM could change its capacity market rules and 
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          1   no longer allow Clifty Creek to bid into the capacity 
 
          2   market? 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
          4   extent it calls for you to speculate. 
 
          5          A.   I think there is potential PJM can change 
 
          6   their tariff, and if they change their tariff that 
 
          7   precluded OVEC from offering its generation, I don't 
 
          8   think it's likely, but they can change their tariff. 
 
          9   They are a creature of their tariff. 
 
         10          Q.   And if that was the case, then OVEC would 
 
         11   be dispatched into MISO most likely, correct? 
 
         12          A.   Now, that's kind of -- those aren't 
 
         13   the -- those aren't the only two choices. 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  But would you agree MISO does not 
 
         15   have a functioning capacity market that's equivalent 
 
         16   to PJM? 
 
         17          A.   I'll say since you added the word 
 
         18   "equivalent," I would say it's not equivalent to PJM. 
 
         19          Q.   And by that I mean the compensation is -- 
 
         20          A.   They are different markets. 
 
         21          Q.   Much less. 
 
         22          A.   Historically they have been much less. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay.  Thank you. 
 
         24          A.   But they're different and I think that's 
 
         25   important.  One is three-year forward looking and one 
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          1   is volunteer -- three-year forward looking and 
 
          2   binding, and the other one is elective and one year. 
 
          3   So they are different. 
 
          4          Q.   Thank you for that clarification. 
 
          5          A.   You're welcome. 
 
          6               MR. OLIKER:  I think besides some small 
 
          7   foundational questions I think that's all I have for 
 
          8   the public record. 
 
          9               MS. SPILLER:  So it's about 5 after 3. 
 
         10   We are going to take a quick -- 
 
         11               THE WITNESS:  Unless we are not finished 
 
         12   with before we go into the confidential section.  So 
 
         13   I don't know if there is more. 
 
         14               MR. BERGER:  Yeah, people on the phone. 
 
         15               THE WITNESS:  Let's do that. 
 
         16               MS. SPILLER:  So we are asking people if 
 
         17   they have any questions for Mr. Whitlock during the 
 
         18   public section, and then we will take a short break. 
 
         19               So Jody?  Jody, do you have any questions 
 
         20   for Chuck?  Jody, you might be on mute.  Jody? 
 
         21               Scott or Jake? 
 
         22               MR. CASTO:  No questions from us. 
 
         23               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you. 
 
         24               Doug? 
 
         25               MR. HART:  No. 
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          1               MS. SPILLER:  Steve? 
 
          2               MR. BEELER:  No. 
 
          3               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you.  Becky? 
 
          4               MS. HUSSEY:  No questions. 
 
          5               MS. SPILLER:  Thanks.  Mike? 
 
          6               MR. SETTINERI:  Yeah, I have just a few 
 
          7   quick questions.  This is Mike Settineri on behalf of 
 
          8   RESA, Retail Energy Supply Association.  Can you hear 
 
          9   me okay? 
 
         10               MS. SPILLER:  We can, thank you. 
 
         11                           - - - 
 
         12                     CROSS-EXAMINATION 
 
         13   By Mr. Settineri: 
 
         14          Q.   Okay.  Good afternoon, Mr. Whitlock. 
 
         15   Again, my name is Mike Settineri.  I represent the 
 
         16   Retail Energy Supply Association.  I wanted to ask 
 
         17   you some quick questions. 
 
         18               No. 1, you are an OVEC -- member of the 
 
         19   OVEC Executive Committee, correct? 
 
         20          A.   Yes. 
 
         21          Q.   Okay.  And are you also -- by in turn you 
 
         22   are a member of the OVEC board. 
 
         23          A.   Yes. 
 
         24          Q.   All right.  How long have you been a 
 
         25   member of the OVEC Executive Committee? 
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          1          A.   Can we check and we'll -- we'll get the 
 
          2   documents?  I don't remember the dates. 
 
          3          Q.   Can you give me an approximate? 
 
          4          A.   I just prefer to check and give you the 
 
          5   right dates. 
 
          6               MR. SETTINERI:  That's fine.  Counsel, 
 
          7   you will agree to provide that in an e-mail -- 
 
          8               MS. SPILLER:  Certainly, Mike. 
 
          9               MR. SETTINERI:  -- in an interrogatory 
 
         10   response? 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Yeah. 
 
         12          Q.   Can you tell me generally in terms of how 
 
         13   would you generally describe the difference to 
 
         14   participation on the board versus participation on 
 
         15   the executive committee? 
 
         16          A.   So the executive -- the board, the 
 
         17   executive -- let me just tell you what the 
 
         18   executive -- the executive committee will deal with, 
 
         19   you know, employee matters that are more private. 
 
         20   They don't involve all the members.  They're -- those 
 
         21   are typically the conversations that happen in the 
 
         22   executive committee. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay.  What about matters relating to the 
 
         24   ICPA? 
 
         25          A.   So those are all -- the ICPA is going to 
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          1   every member of the OVEC board. 
 
          2          Q.   Okay.  Does the OVEC board meet on a 
 
          3   regular basis? 
 
          4          A.   Yes. 
 
          5          Q.   And how much does it meet? 
 
          6          A.   So we -- probably three or four times a 
 
          7   year and then we will have special meetings every now 
 
          8   and then. 
 
          9          Q.   Okay.  And that three or four times a 
 
         10   year, is that scheduled in advance on a yearly basis? 
 
         11          A.   Typically scheduled in advance. 
 
         12          Q.   Okay.  And if you can repeat your answer 
 
         13   or I would be glad to have it read back.  I asked you 
 
         14   how often the board meets, and you said three to four 
 
         15   times yearly.  And then that second part of your 
 
         16   answer are there other additional meetings? 
 
         17          A.   Yeah.  I think there are some special 
 
         18   meetings that take place. 
 
         19          Q.   Okay.  And what -- under what 
 
         20   circumstances would a special meeting be called? 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  That's getting into 
 
         22   confidential.  We can save that. 
 
         23               MR. SETTINERI:  I don't see why the 
 
         24   nature of the meeting -- I am not asking for the 
 
         25   contents of the meeting, but just generally I am 
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          1   asking for a general answer. 
 
          2          A.   So I don't know how to answer the 
 
          3   question without referring to the content of the 
 
          4   discussion. 
 
          5          Q.   Okay.  We'll save that for later then. 
 
          6          A.   I am not sure I can answer it either way. 
 
          7          Q.   What's the last time the executive 
 
          8   committee met? 
 
          9          A.   I think it was two board meetings ago. 
 
         10   So I want to say it was in the fourth quarter of '13, 
 
         11   subject to check. 
 
         12          Q.   Okay.  And we are talking about the 
 
         13   executive committee, correct? 
 
         14          A.   Correct.  That was your question. 
 
         15          Q.   Okay.  All right.  Going back to the 
 
         16   regular, the OVEC board itself, does the OVEC board 
 
         17   have regularly scheduled meetings? 
 
         18          A.   Yes. 
 
         19          Q.   And how often are those meetings 
 
         20   scheduled? 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  Objection, asked and 
 
         22   answered. 
 
         23          A.   I think I already answered it. 
 
         24          Q.   Three or four times a year; is that 
 
         25   correct? 
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          1          A.   Again, I don't -- I can't recall a time 
 
          2   when the executive committee didn't meet apart from 
 
          3   Regular -- regular board meeting.  So the question 
 
          4   that I had answered previously was around board 
 
          5   meetings and then the executive -- 
 
          6          Q.   So in general the executive committee 
 
          7   meets on the same -- at the same basis as a meeting 
 
          8   of the full OVEC board? 
 
          9          A.   It's a subset of the full OVEC meeting. 
 
         10          Q.   Has the executive committee ever met in a 
 
         11   separate date other than the full OVEC board? 
 
         12          A.   Not that I can remember. 
 
         13          Q.   Okay.  And am I correct then that the 
 
         14   last meeting of the full OVEC board -- let me 
 
         15   rephrase that.  The last meeting of the OVEC board 
 
         16   was approximately in the fourth quarter of 2013? 
 
         17          A.   That was the last executive meeting. 
 
         18          Q.   Well, you also -- you're saying then that 
 
         19   the OVEC board did not meet on that date? 
 
         20          A.   That's not what I'm saying. 
 
         21          Q.   Okay.  Let me ask the question again. 
 
         22          A.   Okay. 
 
         23          Q.   Okay.  When was the last time that the 
 
         24   OVEC board met? 
 
         25          A.   I want to say the second quarter of '14, 
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          1   subject to check. 
 
          2          Q.   Okay.  And you had mentioned previously 
 
          3   that the executive committee -- last time the 
 
          4   executive committee met was in December of 2014 -- or 
 
          5   at least fourth quarter of 2013, excuse me; is that 
 
          6   correct? 
 
          7          A.   Yeah, subject to check, yes. 
 
          8          Q.   All right.  Okay.  So when the OVEC board 
 
          9   meetings are held, sometimes there is not an 
 
         10   executive committee meeting, correct? 
 
         11          A.   That's correct. 
 
         12          Q.   All right.  But there are never separate 
 
         13   meetings of the executive committee where on the same 
 
         14   day there would be a meeting of the OVEC board; is 
 
         15   that correct? 
 
         16          A.   Again, to the best of my recollection.  I 
 
         17   haven't been involved in an executive committee 
 
         18   meeting outside of -- 
 
         19          Q.   Have you missed any -- or let's say you 
 
         20   attended the 2014 OVEC board meeting? 
 
         21               MS. SPILLER:  I am going to object to the 
 
         22   relevance.  Go ahead. 
 
         23          A.   I try to attend all the meetings.  If 
 
         24   not, there is a proxy that goes. 
 
         25          Q.   Okay.  Did you attend the 2014 OVEC board 
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          1   meeting? 
 
          2          A.   I don't remember. 
 
          3          Q.   You don't recall whether you attended the 
 
          4   2014 board meeting this year? 
 
          5          A.   That's what I just said. 
 
          6          Q.   Okay.  Do you recall attending the 2013 
 
          7   fourth quarter executive committee meeting? 
 
          8          A.   Yes. 
 
          9               MR. SETTINERI:  Okay.  All right.  I have 
 
         10   no further questions.  Thank you. 
 
         11               MS. SPILLER:  Colleen? 
 
         12               MS. MOONEY:  I have no questions.  Thank 
 
         13   you. 
 
         14               MS. SPILLER:  Thank you.  We are going to 
 
         15   take a 5-minute break, and we are going to -- then we 
 
         16   will continue with the confidential section. 
 
         17               (Recess taken.) 
 
         18               MS. SPILLER:  We are in the confidential 
 
         19   portion now of Mr. Whitlock's deposition. 
 
         20               (CONFIDENTIAL PORTION EXCERPTED.) 
 
         21                           - - - 
 
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
 
         25 
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          1   State of Ohio                 : 
                                            :  SS: 
          2   County of ___________________ : 
 
          3          I, Charles R. Whitlock, do hereby certify that 
              I have read the foregoing transcript of my deposition 
          4   given on Thursday, September 11, 2014; that together 
              with the correction page attached hereto noting 
          5   changes in form or substance, if any, it is true and 
              correct. 
          6 
 
          7                          ____________________________ 
                                     Charles R. Whitlock 
          8 
 
          9          I do hereby certify that the foregoing 
              transcript of the deposition of Charles R. Whitlock 
         10   was submitted to the witness for reading and signing; 
              that after he had stated to the undersigned Notary 
         11   Public that he had read and examined his deposition, 
              he signed the same in my presence on the ________ day 
         12   of ______________________, 2014. 
 
         13 
                                       __________________________ 
         14                            Notary Public 
 
         15 
 
         16   My commission expires _________________, ________. 
 
         17                           - - - 
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         21 
 
         22 
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         24 
 
         25 
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          1                        CERTIFICATE 
 
          2   State of Ohio             : 
                                        :  SS: 
          3   County of Franklin        : 
 
          4          I, Karen Sue Gibson, Notary Public in and for 
              the State of Ohio, duly commissioned and qualified, 
          5   certify that the within named Charles R. Whitlock was 
              by me duly sworn to testify to the whole truth in the 
          6   cause aforesaid; that the testimony was taken down by 
              me in stenotypy in the presence of said witness, 
          7   afterwards transcribed upon a computer; that the 
              foregoing is a true and correct transcript of the 
          8   testimony given by said witness taken at the time and 
              place in the foregoing caption specified and 
          9   completed without adjournment. 
 
         10          I certify that I am not a relative, employee, 
              or attorney of any of the parties hereto, or of any 
         11   attorney or counsel employed by the parties, or 
              financially interested in the action. 
         12 
                     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 
         13   hand and affixed my seal of office at Columbus, Ohio, 
              on this 15th day of September, 2014. 
         14 
 
         15                      ________________________________ 
                                 Karen Sue Gibson, Registered 
         16                      Merit Reporter and Notary Public 
                                 in and for the State of Ohio. 
         17 
              My commission expires August 14, 2015. 
         18 
              (KSG-5931) 
         19 
                                      - - - 
         20 
 
         21 
 
         22 
 
         23 
 
         24 
 
         25 
 
 
 
 
 
              ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481 



























































































































































































































































































This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities 

Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on 

10/20/2014 1:55:44 PM

in

Case No(s). 14-0841-EL-SSO, 14-0842-EL-ATA

Summary: Deposition Public Deposition of Charles Whitlock, Part 1, Filed by the Office of the
Ohio Consumers' Counsel electronically filed by Ms. Deb J. Bingham on behalf of Grady,
Maureen R. Ms.


	OCC - Public Deposition of Charles Whitlock Part 1 - Duke 14-841-EL-SSO et al
	Whitlock Depo with Exhibits_Part1
	Whitlock Depo with Exhibits_Part2

	Whitlock Part 1a

